
Policy and Performance 
Advisory Committee 
21 September 2022 
 

 

 

 

Time and venue: 
 
3.00 pm in the Council Chamber, County Hall, St Anne's Crescent, Lewes, East 
Sussex, BN7 1UE 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillor Liz Boorman (Chair); Councillors Isabelle Linington (Deputy-Chair) 
Robert Banks, Nancy Bikson, Christine Brett, Roy Clay, Lynda Duhigg, 
Christine Robinson, Adrian Ross, Steve Saunders and Richard Turner 
 
Quorum: 3 
 

Published: Monday, 12 September 2022 
 

Agenda 
  
1 Minutes of the previous meeting dated 29 June 2022 (Pages 5 - 12) 

  
2 Apologies for absence   

  
3 Declarations of Interest   
 
 Disclosure by councillors of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 

nature of any interest and whether the councillor regards the interest as 
prejudicial under the terms of the Code of Conduct. 
  

4 Urgent Items   
 
 Items not on the agenda which the Chair of the meeting is of the opinion should 

be considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances as 
defined in Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. A 
Supplementary Report will be circulated at the meeting to update the main 
Reports with any late information. 
  

5 Written Questions from Councillors   
 
 To deal with written questions from councillors pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 12.3 

(page D8 of the Constitution). 
  

POLICY INPUT AND DEVELOPMENT 
  
6 Requested reports due for consideration by the Cabinet on 22 September 

2022   
  

Public Document Pack



 

 (a) Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 1 - 2022-2023 
(Pages 13 - 28) 

  
 (b) Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022-2023 (Pages 29 - 44) 

  
 (c) Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund (Pages 45 - 

54) 
  

 (d) Housing development update (Pages 55 - 62) 
  

7 Exclusion of the public   
 
 The Chief Executive considers that discussion of the following items is likely to 

disclose exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and may therefore need to take place in private session. 
The exempt information reasons are shown beneath the items listed below. 
Furthermore, in relation to paragraph 10 of Schedule 12A, it is considered that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. (The requisite notices having been given under 
regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.)  
  
(Note: Exempt papers are printed on pink paper). 

  
  

 (a) Housing Development update - Exempt appendix 1  (Pages 63 - 64) 
  

8 Forward Plan of Decisions (Pages 65 - 82) 
 
 To receive the Forward Plan of the Council. 

  
9 Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme  (Pages 83 - 

86) 
 
 To receive the Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme. 

  
10 Date of Next Meeting   
 
 To note that the next meeting of the Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 

is scheduled to be held on the 3 November 2022, at County Hall, St Annes 
Crescent, Lewes. 
 

 

Information for the public 
Accessibility:   
Please note that the venue for this meeting is wheelchair accessible and has an induction 
loop to help people who are hearing impaired. This agenda and accompanying reports are 
published on the Council’s website in PDF format which means you can use the “read out 
loud” facility of Adobe Acrobat Reader. 
Filming/Recording:  
This meeting may be filmed, recorded or broadcast by any person or organisation. Anyone 
wishing to film or record must notify the Chair prior to the start of the meeting. Members of 



3 
 

the public attending the meeting are deemed to have consented to be filmed or recorded, 
as liability for this is not within the Council’s control. 
Public participation:  
Please contact Democratic Services (see end of agenda) for the relevant deadlines for 
registering to speak on a matter which is listed on the agenda if applicable. 
 

Information for councillors 
Disclosure of interests:   
Members should declare their interest in a matter at the beginning of the meeting.  
 
In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered (nor 
the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must be reported 
to the meeting by the member and subsequently notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer 
within 28 days. 
 
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when the 
matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). 
Councillor right of address:   
A member of the Council may ask the Chair of a committee or sub-committee a question 
on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affect the 
District and which falls within the terms of reference of that Committee or Sub-Committee. 
 
A member must give notice of the question to the Head of Democratic Services in writing 
or by electronic mail no later than close of business on the fourth working day before the 
meeting at which the question is to be asked. 
Other participation:  
Please contact Democratic Services (see end of agenda) for the relevant deadlines for 
registering to speak on a matter which is listed on the agenda if applicable. 
 
Democratic Services 
For any further queries regarding this agenda or notification of apologies please contact 
Democratic Services. 

Email: committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk   

Telephone: 01323 410000 

Council website: https://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/ 
 
Modern.gov app available: View upcoming public committee documents on your device.  
Free modern.gov  iPad app or Android app or Microsoft app . 
 

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
https://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/moderngov/9pfpjqcvz8nl?activetab=pivot:overviewtab


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 

 
Minutes of meeting held in Ditchling and Telscombe Rooms - Southover House, 
Southover Road, Lewes, BN7 1AB (TBC) on 29 June 2022 at 2.30 pm. 
 
Present: 
Councillor Liz Boorman (Chair). 
Councillors Christine Brett, Roy Clay, Sharon Davy, Christine Robinson, Adrian Ross 
and Steve Saunders. 
 
Officers in attendance:  
Luke Dreeling (Performance Lead), Lee Banner (Transformation Programme Manager), 
Nick Peeters (Committee Officer), Nathan Haffenden (Head of Commercial Business 
Development), Leigh Palmer (Head of Planning First), Peter Sharp (Head of 
Regeneration), Seanne Sweeney (Strategy and Commissioning Lead for Community 
and Partnerships) and Tim Whelan (Director of Service Delivery). 
 
  
11 Minutes of the previous meeting date 31 May 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 31 May 2022 were submitted and the 
Chair was authorised to sign them as a correct record. 
  

12 Apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Banks, Bikson, Duhigg, 
Linington and Turner. Councillor Davey confirmed she was acting as a 
substitute for Councillor Linington. 
  

13 Declarations of Interest 
 
The following Members declared a pecuniary interest and abstained from 
voting for the individual item(s) in which they declared an interest: 
  
Councillor Saunders declared an interest in recommendations for: Hillcrest 
Boxing Club, Newhaven; Denton Community Garden and Sussex Police 
(ANPR Cameras at Valley Road) 
  
Councillor Boorman declared an interest in recommendations for Seaford Town 
Council (fencing around Martello Fields and Seaford Salts Walkway 
Improvements) 
  
Councillor Ross declared an interest in recommendations for Newhaven and 
Seaford Sailing Club. 
  
Councillor Brett declared an interest in recommendations for Seaford 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 2
 29 June 2022 

 

Community Garden. 
  
Councillor Robinson declared an interest in recommendations for Telscombe 
Town Council (Information Boards at the entrance to Chatsworth Park). 
  

14 Urgent Items 
 
There were none. 
  

15 Written Questions from Councillors 
 
There were none. 
  

16 Requested reports due for consideration by the Cabinet on 7 July 2022 
 
It was confirmed by members that, as part of the call-over process, the 
following reports would be included in discussion by the Committee: 
  
6(a) Cost of Living Crisis  

6(b) Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 4 - 2021-2022 

6(e) Reimagining Newhaven - Project Update  

6(f) Recommendations for Community Infrastructure Levy Spending 

6(g) Methodology for collecting monitoring fees in connection with the 
 compliance with S106 Legal Agreements  

  
The following Cabinet reports were not requested for inclusion in discussion 
and as a result the Committee; Resolved that the Officer recommendations in 
the reports be supported in full: 
  
6(c) Provisional Revenue & Capital Outturn - 2021/22  
  
6(d) Treasury Management Annul Report 2021/22 
  
6(h) Revised Planning Pre-Application Charging Schedule 
  

16a Reimagining Newhaven - Project Update 
 
Nathan Haffenden (Head of Development, Investment and Delivery) and 
Peter Sharp (Head of Regeneration) presented the report which sought to 
drive forward the Reimagining Newhaven programme in delivering 
interventions that continue to best serve the town and the wider community, in 
the context of the changing landscape and current operating environment. 
During discussion, the following points were highlighted: 
  
       NHS Sussex, as the commissioner of practices, is now in a position to 

engage with the possibility of supporting a practice at a new site. Outside 
of the primary care services, any additional services provided would be 

Page 6



Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 3
 29 June 2022 

 

subject to consultation and discussion with the health care provider. 
  
       In terms of consultation, the existing scheme (pre-health and wellbeing) 

had already been approved by the Government and a great deal of work 
had been carried out behind the scenes, prior to its presentation. The 
timing of any consultation was critical. There would be further consultation 
as the scheme developed. Informal consultation took place with 
Newhaven Town Council in development of the early draft bid. 

  
       The future high street funds allocation had to be spent by31 March 2024. 

The timeframe for the scheme might need to be updated to reflect 
changes. Once the revised business case has been approved in principle 
by the Government, the detailed business case would be presented to the 
Cabinet. Any additional Council investment would be set out clearly to the 
Cabinet with proposals as to how this would be met in the Capital 
Programme.  

  
       The revised business case to be submitted to the Government was not 

requesting additional funding but will now include the additional health and 
wellbeing elements.   

  
Resolved to support the officer recommendations in the Cabinet report in full. 
  

16b Cost of Living Crisis 
 
Seanne Sweeney, Community Services Lead, presented the report which 
sought to provide an update on measures already taken and to agree a range 
of measures to support local people struggling due to the cost of living crisis. 
During discussion, the following points were highlighted: 
  
       It was anticipated that the newly created officer post would be filled on a 

secondment basis from another team within the organisation.  
  
       The Grants programme would be provided for local charities to identify 

and support those in need. The support would be provided through a 
range of means including food, advice and advocacy. The Household 
Support Fund (provided by Government) was already in place to provide 
direct funding to residents in need.   

  
       A scoping exercise of community supermarkets and foodbanks would be 

undertaken by the dedicated officer. More sustainable options would also 
be considered such as waste farm produce. 

  
       Concern was expressed that a separate allocation of £50,000 was  

required to provide a dedicated part time, fixed term post and it was 
proposed that the sum should be included in the newly created Cost of 
Living Support Earmarked Reserve. 

  
Resolved by a majority, to support the officer recommendations in the 
Cabinet report, subject to the following amended recommendation being 

Page 7



Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 4
 29 June 2022 

 

considered by the Cabinet: 
  
(2) To approve that up to £250k be allocated from the newly created Cost of 
Living Support Earmarked Reserve, to establish a cost of living crisis fund 
along with officer time for its administration. 
  
It was noted that not all Members supported the amended recommendation. 
  

17 Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 4 - 2021-2022 
 
Luke Dreeling, performance Lead, Lee Banner, Transformation Programme 
Manager, and Tim Whelan, Director of Service Delivery, presented the report 
which enabled Members to consider specific aspects of the council’s progress 
and performance. During discussion, the following points were highlighted: 
  
       There were currently 13 new customer advisers being ‘classroom trained’ 

who were expected to be fully trained in approximately 3 months.  
  
       The Government was presently consulting on removing all charges at 

household waste and recycling sites. Additional cameras (including battery 
operated units) had been purchased to monitor fly tipping incidents; 
however, they could only be used overtly with the use of the cameras 
advertised. 

  
       Lewes District sent household waste to the energy recovery facility in 

Newhaven. The facility required regular amounts of waste to be processed 
in order to provide electricity back to the National Grid. The importance of 
an overall reduction in waste was noted. It was agreed that, in consultation 
with the relevant Cabinet portfolio holder, a target for the reduction in waste 
would be considered. 

  
       The ‘bring centres’ at supermarkets were not being reopened as residents 

were using kerbside recycling, and the centres were being used by trades 
people, resulting in poor quality recycling. 

  
Resolved to support the officer recommendations in the Cabinet report in full. 
  

17a Provisional Revenue & Capital Outturn - 2021/22 
 
This report was not requested for inclusion in discussion by the Committee 
(see minute 16). Members had previously resolved to support the officer 
recommendations in the Cabinet report in full. 
  

17b Treasury Management Annul Report 2021/22 
 
This report was not requested for inclusion in discussion by the Committee 
(see minute 16). Members had previously resolved to support the officer 
recommendations in the Cabinet report in full. 
  

17c Recommendations for Community Infrastructure Levy Spending 

Page 8



Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 5
 29 June 2022 

 

 
Leigh Palmer, Head of Planning, presented the report which supported the 
delivery of the right level and type of infrastructure to support the growth 
identified for the local planning authority in the adopted Joint Core Strategy. 
During discussion the following points were highlighted. 
  
       The Mid Sussex bid reflected the close proximity of the Sheddingdean 

Community Centre to Lewes District and its likely heavy use by Lewes 
residents. 

  
       The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) pots were available to all those 

who wished to bid, and the bids could be incremental, and several 
parishes were able to bid for the same large scheme.  

  
       Members felt that oversight of unsuccessful bids would provide a wider 

understanding of the bidding process. 
  
Resolved to support the officer recommendations in the Cabinet report in full. 
  
*Note - The following Members declared a pecuniary interest and abstained 
from voting for the individual item(s) in which they declared an interest: 
  
Councillor Saunders declared an interest in recommendations for: Hillcrest 
Boxing Club, Newhaven; Denton Community Garden and Sussex Police 
(ANPR Cameras at Valley Road) 
  
Councillor Boorman declared an interest in recommendations for Seaford 
Town Council (fencing around Martello Fields and Seaford Salts Walkway 
Improvements) 
  
Councillor Ross declared an interest in recommendations for Newhaven and 
Seaford Sailing Club. 
  
Councillor Brett declared an interest in recommendations for Seaford 
Community Garden. 
  
Councillor Robinson declared an interest in recommendations for Telscombe 
Town Council (Information Boards at the entrance to Chatsworth Park). 
  

17d Methodology for collecting monitoring fees in connection with the 
compliance with S106 Legal Agreements 
 
Leigh Palmer, Head of Planning, presented the report which detail a proposal 
to implement a suite of charges to support the staffing resource in the 
monitoring and compliance of approved S106 Legal Agreements. During 
discussion, the following points were highlighted: 
  

 The charging schedule was comparative with neighbouring authorities 
and also compared to charging structures at a national level. 

  

Page 9



Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 6
 29 June 2022 

 

 The Section 106 agreements detailed in 2.3 of the Cabinet report were 
pre-pandemic and were intended to reflect the types of development 
that applications are received for. The fee income would be dependent 
on the type and complexity of the Section 106 agreements. 

  
 Fees would be received upon the signing of future Section 106 

agreement, subject to Cabinet approval and the charging schedule 
would be reviewed on an annual basis.  

  
Resolved to support in full the officer recommendations in the Cabinet report 
in full. 
  

17e Revised Planning Pre-Application Charging Schedule 
 
This report was not requested for inclusion in discussion by the Committee 
(see minute 16). Members had previously resolved to support the officer 
recommendations in the Cabinet report in full. 
  

18 Forward Plan of Decisions 
 
The Chair, Councillor Boorman, introduced the Forward Plan of Cabinet 
decisions. Members requested that the following items be considered at the 
next meeting of the Committee: 
  
       Homes First Repairs Service: Re-design and Development 
  
       Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022-2023 
  
       Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 1 - 2022-2023 

  
       Corporate Plan- Review of year 2 achievements 
  
       Medium term financial strategy 
  

19 Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme 
 
The Chair, Councillor Boorman introduced the Committee’s work programme. 
  
Members were advised that representatives from Southern Water would be 
joining the Committee’s meeting on the 3 November 2023 via Teams. 
  
Resolved to note the Committee’s Work Programme. 
  

20 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved to note that the next meeting of the Policy and Performance 
Advisory Committee is scheduled to be held on 14 September 2022, at 
2.30pm, at Southover House, Lewes. 
 

The meeting ended at 4.20 pm 

Page 10



Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 7
 29 June 2022 

 

 
Councillor Liz Boorman (Chair) 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to: Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 

 
Date: 
 

14 September 2022 

Title: Portfolio progress and performance report 2022/23 - Quarter 
1 

  
Exemption: 
 

None 

Report of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Regeneration and Planning 

  
Ward(s): 
 

All 

Purpose of Cabinet 
report: 
 

To consider the council’s progress and performance in 
respect of service areas for the First Quarter of the year 
(April-June 2022) as shown in Appendix 1 
 

Officer 
recommendations to 
the Cabinet: 

(1) To note progress and performance for Quarter 1 2022/3 
 
 

Recommendations to 
the Committee 
 

The recommendations are detailed at 1.3 of this report 

Reasons for 
recommendations to 
the Committee: 
 

To provide a critical friend challenge to the Cabinet decision 
and policy making process. 

Contact Officer(s): Name: Nick Peeters 
Post title: Committee Officer 
E-mail: nick.peeters@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01323 415272 

 
1 Introduction 

 
1.1  In its role as a provider of public scrutiny and as critical friend, the Policy and 

Performance Advisory Committee has a duty to provide a challenge to the 
executive decision and policy makers.  
 

1.2  The Policy and Performance Advisory Committee is able to provide this 
challenge through the inclusion of the Council’s Forward Plan of Decisions as a 
standing item on each of the Committee’s agendas, allowing the Committee to 
request the inclusion of reports due for consideration by the Cabinet on its 
agenda and by asking that the relevant officers, heads of service or directors, 
attend the Committee meetings and discuss the content of the reports. 
 

1.3  Following consideration of each item, where the Members will be able to ask 
questions of the relevant officers, heads of service, directors and other 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6a



stakeholders, the Policy and Performance Advisory Committee will provide one 
of the following three recommendations to the Cabinet: 
 
1) To support the recommendations in the report in full; or  
 
2) To support the recommendation in the report subject to the consideration   

by the Cabinet of any amendments agreed by Committee; or 
 
3) To not support the recommendations in the report and give reasons. 
 

1.4  The Cabinet will be provided with the recommendations from the Policy and 
Performance Advisory Committee when it considers the main report. 
 

2 Financial / Legal / Risk Management / Equality Analysis/ Environmental 
Sustainability Implications/ Background Papers 
 

2.1 All implications are addressed in the Cabinet report attached at Appendix 1.  
 

 • Appendix 1 – Portfolio progress and performance report 2022/23 - 
Quarter 1 

  
 

Page 14



Report to: Cabinet 
 

Date: 22 September 2022 
 

Title: Portfolio progress and performance report 2022/23 - Quarter 
1 
 

Report of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Regeneration and Planning 
 

Cabinet member: 
 

Councillor Chris Collier, Cabinet member for performance 
and people 
 

Ward(s): 
 

All 

Purpose of report: 
 

To consider the council’s progress and performance in 
respect of service areas for the First Quarter of the year 
(April-June 2022) as shown in Appendix 1 
 

Decision type: 
 

Non-key 

Officer 
recommendation(s): 

To note progress and performance for Quarter 1 2022/23 
 
 

Reasons for 
recommendations: 
 

To enable Cabinet members to consider specific aspects of 
the council’s progress and performance 
 

Contact Officer(s): Luke Dreeling: Performance Lead 
Tel: 07525 351757 or email: 
luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

 
1  Introduction 

 
1.1  The council has an annual cycle for the preparation, implementation and monitoring 

of its business plans and budgets. This cycle enables us regularly to review the 
council’s work, and the targets it sets for performance, to ensure these continue to 
reflect customer needs and council aspirations. 
 

1.2  It is important to monitor and assess progress and performance on a regular basis, 
to ensure the council continues to deliver priority outcomes and excellent services to 
its customers and communities. 
 

2  Corporate Plan and council policies 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 

This report sets out the council’s performance in the First Quarter of 2022/23 
against its aspirations as set out in the Corporate Plan 2020-24.  As was agreed 
previously by Cabinet, the report also provides a summary of work to date relating to 
the Recovery and Reset programme. 
 

Page 15



3 Recovery and Reset 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Since the Recovery and Reset programme commenced in 2020, considerable 
benefits have been delivered in pursuit of the overall aims. In addition to those 
previously reported to Cabinet, the benefits delivered include: 
 
• Work to implement new technology to automate a range of transactional 

processes within Customer First went live in early March 2022. A new generation 
chat bot was implemented on the council’s website and, in its first six months of 
operation, has performed well: 
o The bot has responded to over 30,000 queries from residents, with 21% of 

the responses being provided out of hours. 
o The system is currently operating at a 93% accuracy rate when compared 

with a fully-trained member of staff – this is above average performance at 
this stage of the bot’s development and will continue to improve as lessons 
are learned. 

o Livechat (real time, web-enabled staff discussions with customers) volumes 
have reduced by approximately 75% as a result of the bot answering 
customer enquiries. 

The next phase of the project is to implement the chat bot on the contact centre 
phone line, and the goal is that, over time, it will reduce the volumes of queries 
into the contact centre, enabling the team to provide more in-depth support to 
those customers in the greatest need and to focus on more value-adding activity. 

• The project to implement a new revenues and benefits system continues to 
progress well beyond the decision, last year, to purchase the NPS system from 
NEC. Significant work is underway to implement the system in 2023 (working 
around the peak period of year-end related activity). 

• The project to explore options for the identification of a single system to manage 
environmental health and licensing activity recently identified IDOX as the 
preferred supplier. The project will move into its implementation phase once the 
commercial discussions to finalise the terms of the contract are completed. 

• As the council’s website was launched nearly 5 years ago, a project is launching 
to explore the latest technology to support better online delivery of services to 
and engagement with customers. The timeline to replace the website will be 
confirmed once resources to lead the activity are appointed. 

• A review of internal communications is currently underway and progressing well. 
A survey seeking the views and opinions of all staff recently closed and analysis 
of the results will inform a new Internal Communications Strategy. 

4 Solution Sprints 
 

4.1 
 

The council made use of solutions sprints (SS) prior to the Covid-19 pandemic as a 
way of realising service and performance improvements. Work is underway to 
relaunch SS and activity this Quarter has included:  
 
• liaising with lead councillors to understand their ideas and aspirations for SS,  
• engaging with representatives from the Managers’ Reference and Staff 

Experience Groups to understand what worked well and less well with previous 
SS and seeking their ideas for improvements, 

Page 16



• Bringing together performance data with feedback received from customers 
within the Business Transformation Unit to identify additional areas of search for 
the refreshed SS. 

 
Over the next Quarter, the process for relaunching SS will be finalised and the new 
approach will be piloted. 
 

5 Financial appraisal 
 

5.1 Project and performance monitoring and reporting arrangements are contained 
within existing estimates. Corporate performance information should also be 
considered alongside the council’s financial update reports (also reported to Cabinet 
each Quarter) as there is a clear link between performance and budgets/resources. 
 

6 Legal implications 
 

6.1 Comment from the Legal Services Team is not necessary for this routine monitoring 
report. 
 

7 Risk management implications 
 

7.1 It is important that corporate performance is monitored regularly otherwise there is a 
risk that reductions in service levels, or projects falling behind schedule, are not 
addressed in a timely way. 
 

8 Equality analysis 
 

8.1 The equality implications of individual decisions relating to the projects/services 
covered in this report are addressed within other relevant council reports or as part 
of programmed equality analysis. 
 

9 Appendices 
 

 • Appendix 1 – Portfolio Progress and Performance Report (Quarter 1 2022/23) 
• Appendix 2 – Corporate Plan Progress Update 

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

Lewes District Council Portfolio Progress and Performance Report 
Quarter 1 2022-2023 (April to June 2022) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Key 
 

 

 

Performance that is at or above target 
Project is on track 
 

 

 
Performance that is below target 
Projects that are not expected to be completed in time or within requirements 

 

 

Project has been completed, been discontinued or is on hold  

 

Performance that is slightly below target but is within an acceptable tolerance 
Projects : where there are issues causing significant delay, changes to planned activities, scale, 
cost pressures or risks 

 
Direction of travel on performance indicator : improving performance 

 
Direction of travel on performance indicator : declining performance 

 
Direction of travel on performance indicator : no change  Data with no performance target 

P
age 19



2 

 
Key Performance Indicators 
 

Q4 
2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

KPI Description 
Annual 
Target 

2022/23 Value Value Target Status Short Trend 
Latest Note 

1.(Finance) 
Maximise amount of 
Council Tax collected 
during the year 

97.80% 97.41% 29.45% 29.60%   

Collection is 0.15% below target and is only 0.03% down on the same period 
last year. The number of reminder and final notices issue this year is 
comparable to the same period last year which suggests that by increasing the 
level of support from 80% to 100% through the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme it has helped to support the most vulnerable residents through the 
cost of living crisis so far. Work continues to lessen the impact that the cost of 
living crisis is having on residents through the delivery of the Household 
Support Fund and Council Tax Energy Rebate Schemes. Q1 2021/22 value 
was 29.48%, for reference. 

2.(Finance) 
Maximise amount of 
Business Rates collected 
during the year 

98% 98.37% 37.56% 28.59%   

The collection rate is 8.97% above target. The increase is due to the award of 
Covid Additional Relief Fund in the 2021/22 financial year to eligible 
businesses resulting in £1.9m in overpayments to 525 accounts which is the 
majority of the caseload. The credits have subsequently been transferred into 
the 2022/23 financial year on each account where the credit hasn't been 
claimed putting most businesses ahead of their current instalment plans. Q1 
2021/22 value was 24.05%, for reference. 

3.(Community and 
Customers) 
Average number of days to 
process new claims for 
housing/council tax benefit 
 
 

17.0 12.1 23.5 17.0   

The various government schemes that the team are having to administer, 
along with the need for staff to support the Contact Centre in answering calls, 
has led to the reduced performance. Performance has improved in July with 
the latest weekly outturn being 17.8 days. 

 
4.(Community and 
Customers) 
Average days to process 
change of circumstances 
(Housing/Council Tax 
Benefit) 
 

6.0 2.5 23.2 6.0   

The large increase in the average number of days taken to process changes is 
mainly down to some rent change files we received from the Housing 
Association’s not being actioned for several months. We have ensured 
claimants have not been disadvantaged in any way and have put processes in 
place to ensure this does not happen again. 

5.(Community and 
Customers) 
Increase the percentage of 
calls to the contact centre 

80% 37.9% 25.7% 80%   

Customer contact experienced a challenging and demanding start to the new 
financial year where, like previous years, the first quarter saw high levels of 
contact where unfortunately we were unable to meet our KPIs. 

P
age 20



3 

Q4 
2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

KPI Description 
Annual 
Target 

2022/23 Value Value Target Status Short Trend 
Latest Note 

answered within 60 
seconds 
 
 

Quarter 1 found us at 25.7% of all calls being answered within 60 Seconds – 
this was a 12.2% decrease from Quarter 4’s 37.9%. The average wait time for 
a call is currently 7 minutes and 37 seconds. 

Although call volumes largely remained the same when compared to the 
previous Quarter, contact is of a more complex nature where Customer 
Advisors are spending longer on calls dealing with residents who are 
struggling financially due to the cost-of-living crisis. Advisors have been 
ensuring that all available information and resources are provided; this is both 
resources found internally within the Authorities, as well as signposting other 
3rd party charities and organisations. 

In addition to this, due to how the recovery timetable and cycle works, the end 
of May and June can see some of the highest number of recovery reminders 
being sent out for Council Tax and Business Rates. With residents struggling 
with the rise in the cost of living, recovery action is generating more contact 
and of a complex nature as households find themselves struggling to keep up 
with instalments. 

During the 1st Quarter, we had 10 New starters join the team, in addition to 
those who were already in training. This has meant that although we are 
slowly reducing the overall number of vacancies, we are currently in a position 
where a large proportion of the team who are not covering other service areas 
other than phones, are currently paired and assisting with the training. This 
results in our trained and experienced staff not being able to work at full 
capacity in answering calls as they navigate and train New Starters on our 
systems and processes. 

Recruitment continues at pace within Customer Contact as we try and fill our 
remaining vacancies, where during Quarter 2 we will start to see our New 
Starters becoming more confident in their learning and handling contact 
themselves. Our focus remains on balancing the need to answer calls as 
quickly as possible, coupled with ensuring that all customers and residents 
receive the assistance they need and leave the call with as much information 
and support available. 

6.(Housing)Decrease total 
number of households living 
in emergency (nightly paid) 
accommodation  

Data Only 48 48 Data only   

The cost of living crisis has impacted the numbers negatively. In addition to 
this we have seen a large number of single older customers being asked to 
leave the private rented sector, due to landlords selling the properties. 

 

P
age 21



4 

 
Other Performance Indicators 
 

Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Latest Note 
KPI Description Annual Target 

2022/23 Value Value Quarterly 
Target Status Short Trend  

7. Housing: Decrease average 
number of days to re-let Council 
homes (excluding temporary lets) 

20 40.1 40.9 20   

There is a strong focus on Voids for this year; 
including an improvement plan following impact 
from Covid, as this has caused a backlog. 

Still issues present for some materials and the 
supply chain, which is being dealt with by 
Property Services. 

A review of the processes, housing register and 
hard to let voids in progress. 

In person visits are being re-introduced for 
moving out inspections and viewings now it is 
safe to do so. 

8. Housing: DFGs - Time taken 
from council receiving a fully 
complete application to the council 
approving the grant  

14 days 4 days 3 days 14 days   
Performance remains above target, continuing a 
positive trend from 2021/22. 

9. Housing: Rent arrears of current 
tenants (expressed as a percentage 
of rent debit) (L) 

3.5% 3.88% 3.72% 3.5%   

Rent arrears decreased overall by £42,218 since 
April and the team have worked hard to achieve 
this. We are currently exploring options with our 
rent arrears optimisation software supplier 
Mobysoft, at ways in which we can improve rent 
arrears collection through improved 
enhancements to software which will further 
reduce the arrears. Additional negotiation skills 
training will be delivered to the team in the coming 
months to enhance skill levels within the team. 

 

10. People and performance: 
Number of new sign-ups to the 
Councils' social media channels 

650 336 280 162.5   

The number of new followers of the council’s 
social media profiles continues to grow, with Q1 
2022-23 being close to double the figure in the 
same period in the previous year. 

P
age 22



5 

Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Latest Note 
KPI Description Annual Target 

2022/23 Value Value Quarterly 
Target Status Short Trend  

11. People and performance: 
Number of people registering for our 
email service 

3,250 4,178 996 812.5   
PI remains ahead of target 

12. People and performance: 
Average days lost per FTE 
employee due to sickness (J) 

8.0 days 2.27 days 1.62 days 2.0 days   

This is the first quarter of reporting average days 
lost due to sickness for 2022/23.  Despite all 
previous pandemic restrictions having been lifted 
prior to the start of Q1, we recorded an average of 
just 1.62 days absence which is a fairly significant 
reduction from Q4 (2.27 days).  Absences for 
Covid-19 (those staff reporting symptoms) for Q1 
reduced by more than half from 85 in Q4 to 40 in 
Q1.  

The figure of 1.62 days for Q1 puts us on track to 
meet our annual target of 8 days per annum. 

Taking into account LDC Waste Services, when 
excluded, the Q1 figure reduces to 1.36 days and 
Waste Services on its own is 3.37 days, which 
again is a reduction from the previous quarter 
from 4.25 days in Q4 for Waste Services. 

HR Business Partners continue to support 
managers in managing any attendance issues 
that arise. 

13.Planning: % of appeals allowed 
against the authority’s decision not 
to grant planning permission (2 year 
rolling government figures) 

<10% Major – 3.2% 
Minor – 1.2% 

Major – 
3.3% 

Minor – 
0.9% 

10%   

PI remains below the 10% National Performance 
Indicator. 

30 major applications decided 1 overturned at 
appeal 3.3% 

956 minor applications with 9 overturned at 
appeal resulting in a 0.9% achievement 

 
14. Planning: Exceed government 
targets for the % of major 
applications determined within 13 
weeks - LDC 

60% 100% 100% 60%   Above National PI  

15. Planning: Exceed government 
targets for the % of minor 70% 80% 86.01% 80%   Remains above National PI 

P
age 23



6 

Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Latest Note 
KPI Description Annual Target 

2022/23 Value Value Quarterly 
Target Status Short Trend  

applications determined within 8 
weeks- LDC 

16. Recycling & Waste: KG waste 
collected per household Data Only 111.2 37.1 Data only   

Holding figure from Q4 until data from ESCC 
comes in 

17. Recycling & Waste: 
Percentage of household waste 
sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting 

46% 40.47% 38.38%  46%   
Holding figure until data from ESCC is available. 

18.Recycling & Waste: Total 
number of reported fly-tipping 
incidents 

180 99 68 45   

Reported incidents breakdown: April 21, May 18 
and June 29. 

Hotspot wards: Chailey, Barcombe & Hamsey, 
Ditchling & Westmeston and Ouse Valley & 
Ringmer. 

Primary waste types: Other household waste, 
Construction / demolition / excavation and Green 
Waste 

Top 3 by volume type: Small van load, Transit van 
load and Car boot load or less 

19. Sustainability: Air Quality: 
Number of times nitrogen dioxide 
levels exceed national air quality 
objectives (200 μg/m3 hourly mean 
ave.) 

18 0 0 4.5   

We are currently in the process of updating our 
Air Quality Action Plan, during the process (Q3) 
we will propose a more accurate PI to represent 
air quality for Lewes District. The current PI is 
tracked on exceedances of an hourly standard 
with a maximum number of permitted 
exceedances (18) per annum measured only at 
one location in Lewes town currently (as opposed 
to the twenty four hour average per annum which 
is measured via our monitoring stations and our 
network of approximately 50 diffusion tubes 
across the district ). 

 

P
age 24



Appendix 2 
 

LDC 2022 Corporate Plan Progress Update 
 
Getting it right first time 

• Implemented our new chatbot on our website; to enable a hybrid approach to 
our customer service, maintaining our telephone and face to face offering. 
The Human Parity level of the chatbot, meaning the chatbot has understood 
and responded to the query, has been at 92.5% since conception. 

• New scheme working with Cheeky Wipes to provide vouchers for local 
parents to swap to reusable nappies and/or wipes; to reduce our waste. 

• Website promotion of free alternatives to the bulky waste service for reusable 
items.  

• We now have a 90-Minute service level agreement to respond to queries 
via social media. 

• Reintroduced District News to provide quarterly updates on the work the 
council has been doing in the community, offering insight into the strategic 
plans and desired outcomes for the administration. 

• Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme, from April 2022, which targets those 
on the lowest incomes not paying council tax. 

 

Sustainability and Climate Change 

• Helped 181 households install solar panels through the Solar Together 
Scheme plus approx. 50 households included an EV charger quote. 

• £1937 granted to assist the Love Our Ouse Project (for website work) 
• Regionally there has been over £2.2m awarded to the East Sussex region, 

under the Sustainable Warmth scheme for retrofitting the homes of low 
income households. 

• Waste fleet decarbonisation plan- Renewable diesel for all our fleet (not just 
waste but all N1st and other vehicles that fill up at Newhaven) from April 2023 
has been agreed in June. 

• Research continues to be done to investigate the use of ground source heat 
pumps.  

• A new Zero Carbon Community Worker, has been employed to work with 
tenants to reduce our carbon footprint 

• £2,000 grant to help fund Cycle Lewes’s Low Traffic Neighbourhood Study 
• Woodland and Hedgerows: We planted >19,650 native shrubs/trees as 

cross-slope hedgerows (3,745m) and floodplain woodland (0.14 ha). When 
mature we estimate that our new cross-slope hedgerows will help to store and 
slow down at least 11,235 m3 of water (11,235,000 L). 

• Scrapes, pond and temporary flood storage: We have created a network of 
seasonal scrapes and ponds across the catchment which hold 

Page 25



Appendix 2 
 

approximately 1,023,650 L of floodwater, whilst providing important habitat for 
waders, amphibians and aquatic invertebrates. 

• Leaky Dams: We have constructed 286 leaky natural woody dams, which 
hold back an estimated 286,000 L 2 of water per flood event. 

 

Building Community Wealth 

• LDC acquired the headlease to the former UTC (now to be called The 
Marine Workshops) in June 2022 in order to support the regeneration of 
Newhaven town. The building will be developed into a mixed hub 
supporting marine and education, commercial space and new public 
space. Work is continuing on developing the tenant occupation of the 
building and it is planned that the Council will relocate its main office space 
to the property by January 2023. 

• We have recently let a number of large contracts to local contractors 
including Doors & Windows Replacement Programme, Roofing 
Replacement Programme and Kitchen & Bathrooms Replacement 
Programme, all for our Homes First Team. 

• LDC designed and implemented a brand new grants programme which 
allowed broader support for a wider range of voluntary and community 
groups for the first time. Additionally, a unique fund has been created to 
support those fleeing the war in Ukraine. In response to the Cost-of-
Living Crisis, LDC has created a specific fund and post to support the 
local voluntary sector as it works to support people impacted by food and 
fuel poverty. 

 

Delivering Homes 

• As of June 2022, estimates show, LDC are well on their way to delivering 
the 200 new homes (new build and acquisitions) by 2024. 

• In addition to the council owned properties (stated above), 153 affordable 
units have already been complete and 335 on site with target 
completions before March 2024 (accurate at time of reporting). This 
would total 488 new affordable homes between March 2020 and March 
2024 within the district. 

• Updated and adopted a new set of design requirements that will set high 
standards for its new developments. In June 2022 Cabinet also approved 
the principles of this “affordable homes design standard”. Which 
encompasses our sustainability commitment: high thermal performing 
fabric elements, evaluation at concept for renewable energy sources and a 
review of existing stock has been done to identify lower performing 
properties.  

• Improved standards for adaptable housing by targeting fully adaptable 
housing (M4-2 as defined by Building Control) where possible. These 

Page 26



Appendix 2 
 

properties are adaptable to suit the needs of a wide range of people and 
ensure tenants can stay in their homes as they grow older. 

• Suitable sites have been identified and are being built to disabled ready 
standards to meet the specific needs of families with physical disabilities. 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to: Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 

 
Date: 
 

14 September 2022 

Title: Finance update – Performance Quarter 1 2022/23 
  
Report of: Homira Javadi, Chief Finance Officer 
  
Ward(s): 
 

All 

Purpose of Cabinet 
report: 
 

To update members on the Council’s financial performance 
in Quarter 1 2021/22 
 

Officer 
recommendations to 
the Cabinet: 

(1) Note the General Fund, HRA and Collection Fund 
financial performance for the quarter ended June 2022. 

 
(2) Note the capital programme as set out in Appendix 2. 
 

Recommendations to 
the Committee 
 

The recommendations are detailed at 1.3 of this report 

Reasons for 
recommendations to 
the Committee: 
 

To provide a critical friend challenge to the Cabinet decision 
and policy making process. 

Contact Officer(s): Name: Nick Peeters 
Post title: Committee Officer 
E-mail: nick.peeters@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01323 415272 

 
1 Introduction 

 
1.1  In its role as a provider of public scrutiny and as critical friend, the Policy and 

Performance Advisory Committee has a duty to provide a challenge to the 
executive decision and policy makers.  
 

1.2  The Policy and Performance Advisory Committee is able to provide this 
challenge through the inclusion of the Council’s Forward Plan of Decisions as a 
standing item on each of the Committee’s agendas, allowing the Committee to 
request the inclusion of reports due for consideration by the Cabinet on its 
agenda and by asking that the relevant officers, heads of service or directors, 
attend the Committee meetings and discuss the content of the reports. 
 

1.3  Following consideration of each item, where the Members will be able to ask 
questions of the relevant officers, heads of service, directors and other 
stakeholders, the Policy and Performance Advisory Committee will provide one 
of the following three recommendations to the Cabinet: 
 
1) To support the recommendations in the report in full; or  

Page 29

Agenda Item 6b



 
2) To support the recommendation in the report subject to the consideration   

by the Cabinet of any amendments agreed by Committee; or 
 
3) To not support the recommendations in the report and give reasons. 
 

1.4  The Cabinet will be provided with the recommendations from the Policy and 
Performance Advisory Committee when it considers the main report. 
 

2 Financial / Legal / Risk Management / Equality Analysis/ Environmental 
Sustainability Implications/ Background Papers 
 

2.1 All implications are addressed in the Cabinet report attached at Appendix 1.  
 

 • Appendix 1 – Finance update – Performance Quarter 1 2022/23 
  

 

Page 30



 
Report to: Cabinet 

 
Date: 22 September 2022 

 
Title: Finance update – Performance Quarter 1 2022/23 

 
Report of: Homira Javadi, Chief Finance Officer 

 
Cabinet member: 
 

Councillor Zoe Nicholson, Deputy Leader of Council, 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets 
 

Ward(s): 
 

All 
 

Purpose of report: 
 

To update members on the Council’s financial performance 
in Quarter 1 2021/22 
 

Decision type: 
 

Non-Key 
 

Officer 
recommendation(s): 

Cabinet is recommended to 
 

(1) Note the General Fund, HRA and Collection Fund 
financial performance for the quarter ended June 2022. 

 
(2) Note the capital programme as set out in Appendix 2. 

 
Reasons for 
recommendations: 
 

To enable Cabinet members to consider specific aspects of 
the Council’s financial performance.  

Contact Officer(s): Homira Javadi, Chief Finance Officer 
Tel: 01323 415512 or email 
Homira.Javadi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

 
1  Introduction 
1.1  It is essential to ensure that the Council has a sound financial base from which to 

respond to changing activity levels and demand for statutory services and to ensure 
that, when appropriate, its finances are adjusted in response to reducing income 
levels and inflationary pressures on expenditure.  
 

1.2  A report on the financial performance following the end of each quarter is made to 
Cabinet to ensure that the financial health of the General Fund, Housing Revenue 
Account and Capital Programme activities are kept under continual review.  
 

Page 31



1.3  The budget approved by Council in February 2022 was balanced over the medium 
term and was set based on a number of key assumptions including pay and cost 
inflation.  Inflation had been calculated for premises and transport related costs 
including utilities, business rates and fuel based on latest market intelligence and 
CPI forecasts from Central Government.  Whilst there were concerns about the 
rapidly rising levels of inflation, the advice at that time indicated a short term and 
sharp spike rise in inflation followed by a return to previously experienced levels by 
early spring.  
 
The CPI has since nearly quadrupled which when coupled with the proportion of 
use and demand for consumables such as utilities, fuel, goods and services has 
created and continues to give rise to significant budgetary concerns.  
 
UK CPI table     

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Ann
ual 

2022 5.4% 6.1% 7.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.4% 10.1%       

2021 0.7% 0.5% 0.7% 1.5% 2.1% 2.5% 2.0% 3.2% 3.0% 4.1% 5.1% 5.4% 2.6% 

2020 1.8% 1.7% 1.5% 0.8% 0.6% 0.6% 1.1% 0.2% 0.6% 0.7% 0.4% 0.6% 0.9% 

1.4  The Council operates Directorate cash limited budgets and Corporate 
Management Team/Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate action 
is taken to contain both revenue and capital spending in line with the directorate’s 
overall budget limit.   The challenges facing local residents as a result of the cost 
of living crisis are very real and very urgent.   There has been a wave of authorities 
at every level that have revealed their budget plans are in pieces due to the huge 
spike in costs since April 2022 and authorities across the country are not immune 
to the national financial pressures while facing increasing demand and increasing 
cost pressures. 
 

1.5  Various authorities are dealing with a very difficult set of circumstances currently 
and face a real challenge to balance the budget this year, while forecasting a 
significant overspend with the main causes being record inflation levels, soaring 
energy prices, pay deal for staff, etc. This is the reality for councils across the 
country at the moment and it has been widely reported that inflation, energy costs 
and other current challenges are predicted to lead to £2.4bn in extra cost pressures 
to councils this year alone, rising to £3.6bn in 2024-25. 
 

1.6  Through the Priority Based Budgeting approach, each area of the Council’s 
expenditure was scrutinised, and a range of budget reduction options prepared for 
members’ consideration.  Some of the proposals will deliver a level of budget 
reduction in the current financial year, whilst others will yield savings, or increased 
income generation, from 2022/23. The Council has a robust governance process 
for tracking delivery of agreed savings through the Recovery and Stabilisation 
Programme meetings, whilst work is still underway to assess developed savings 
plans. 
 
 
 

Page 32



2  General Fund  
 

2.1  The projected out-turn for 2022/23 as advised by budget holders as of 30 June 
2022 is an overspend of £108,060, as shown in table 1 below: 

Summary Table: 

Table 1: Summary of projected out-turn as 
at Quarter 1 

Budget       
2022-23 

Actual & 
committed 

 Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance at 

year end 
  

£ 
£ £ £ 

Corporate Services 4,919,850 (511,122) 4,921,200 1,350 

Service Delivery 10,533,950 (2,482,542) 11,013,086 479,136 

 Regeneration and Planning  1,783,450 376,930 1,791,274 7,824 

Tourism and Enterprise 508,950 218,700 478,700 (30,250) 

Recharges to the Housing Revenue Account (4,356,300) 0 (4,356,300) 0 

Net Cost of Services 13,389,900 (2,398,034) 13,847,960 458,060 

          

Other Operating Income & Expenditure 350,000 0 0 (350,000) 

Capital Financing 550,000 73,326 550,000 0 

Transfer to (from) reserves 841,000 0 841,000 0 

Proposed transfer (from) reserves*(661,500) 0 0 0 0 

 Net Budget   15,130,900 (2,324,707) 15,238,960 108,060 

      0   

Financing (15,130,900) 0 (15,130,900) 0 

2.2  Some of the provisions from 2021/22 were carried forward due to reprofiling and 
alignment of budget. Where applicable these have been incorporated into relevant 
budgets. These are for noting at this point and will be formerly updated as part of 
the mid-year revision and budget setting process. 

2.3  The residual projected overspend of £108k is due to the anticipated impact of price 
inflation for energy costs and good and service. 

2.4  Inflation is currently at over 10% and is expected to rise to over 13% by October 
2022, fuel prices continue to be the main contributor to this. The bank of England 
has increased base rates to the highest they have been in over 13 years impacting 
the cost of borrowing and impacting mortgage interest rates. 
 

2.5  The impact on consumer spending power, and bad debts is uncertain, however 
due to careful planning in 2021/22 we have been able to mitigate against this 
impact of inflation. 
 

2.6  We afforded and set aside reserves as at 2021/22-year end to provide resilience 
and as a result we have been able to bring into position £661,500 of one of funds 
to support 2022/23 position, this could be offset by the plan to transfer to reserves 
£841k and further consideration will be proposed at the mid-year revision and 
budget setting.  Regeneration will have the support of S31 grants and reserves set 
aside to fund activity in this year. 
 

Page 33



2.7  The budget includes savings targets of £1.2m, which have been deducted from 
the relevant service. 

2.8  Key variances are set out in the following table: 

2.9  Corporate Services slight overspend of £1,350: 

Corporate Services Budget       
2022-23 

Actual & 
committed 

 Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance at 

year end 
  

£ 
£ £ £ 

Corporate Management 460,250 (414,687) 459,450 (800) 

Emergency Planning 40,850 0 42,850 2,000 

Financial Services Team 838,650 0 838,650 0 

Internal Audit and Corporate Fraud 243,400 (56,450) 243,400 0 

Corporate Finance 42,000 15,900 42,000 0 

Corporate Finance - Pension Costs 70,400 10,946 70,400 0 

Human Resources 343,950 (66,831) 343,950 0 

Information Technology  1,760,150 0 1,760,300 150 

Local Land Charges (74,850) 0 (74,850) 0 

Legal Services 397,900 0 397,900 0 

Democratic Services 797,150 0 797,150 
0 

Recovery and Stabilisation 0 0 0 0 

Corporate Services 4,919,850 (511,122) 4,921,200 1,350 

There are small variances to budget that are manageable by the year end. 
 

2.10  Service Delivery projected overspend of £479,136: 

Service Delivery Budget       
2022-23 

Actual & 
committed 

 Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance at 

year end 
  

£ 
£ £ £ 

Customer First 200,100 (83,797) 255,265 
55,165 

Homes First 51,850 0 51,850 
0 

Specialist Advisors 397,700 (1,196,456) 580,553 
182,853 

Specialist Advisors 870,150 134,798 875,207 
5,057 

Specialist Advisors - Building Control 57,600 (158,453) 92,078 
34,478 

Specialist Advisors 20,000 0 20,000 
0 

Account Management 1,109,600 (251,180) 1,095,163 
(14,437) 

Case Management (23,850) 28,767 (23,700) 
150 

Neighbourhood First 765,450 (216,079) 766,450 
1,000 

Customer Contact 943,450 (126,552) 925,291 
(18,159) 

Waste & Recycling 3,766,000 (21,494) 3,852,004 
86,004 

Homes First - Housing Property Services 786,150 0 786,150 
0 

Homes First - Neighbourhood Management 887,750 0 887,750 
0 

Homes First - Customer Experience 165,850 0 165,850 
0 

Homes First - Housing Needs & Standards 161,000 0 161,000 
0 

Homes First - Housing Needs and 
Standards 375,150 (592,097) 522,175 

147,025 

Service Delivery 10,533,950 (2,482,542) 11,013,086 479,136 

Page 34



Main variances include: 

Customer First, £55k due to staff cost pressures 

Specialist Advisors £182k. The majority £140k is due to shortfall in anticipated 
collection of overpayments for housing benefit payments & £42k of increased staff 
costs due to agency staff within regulatory services. 

Building Control £34k due to anticipated reduced income receivable for inspection 
fees  

Waste and Recycling £86k due to vehicle hire  

Housing Needs & Standards £147k due to £85k of staff agency costs, £53k due to 
increased costs of accommodating the homeless and £9k for rough sleepers 

2.11  Regeneration and Planning, projected overspend of £7,824: 

Regeneration and Planning Budget       
2022-23 

Actual & 
committed 

 Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance at 

year end 
  

£ 
£ £ £ 

Estates & Property (125,500) 39,601 (31,350) 
94,150 

Solar Panel Trading Account (74,200) 17,780 (74,200) 
0 

Planning 531,300 (229,211) 647,773 
116,473 

Regeneration  529,700 222,985 326,901 
(202,799) 

North Street Properties 128,400 123,392 128,400 
0 

Business Planning & Performance 793,750 202,383 793,750 
0 

Regeneration and Planning 1,783,450 376,930 1,791,274 7,824 

 

The service is anticipating a lot of pressures and the projected out-turn includes 
reserve movements of £661k to support it, the main variances are as follows: 

Estates and Property £94k, this includes a proposed release of £50k from reserves 
for the marine workshop pending business case and review, £112k pressure for 
industrial vacant units, delayed letting of Lewes house £60k, £40k energy and 
telephone costs on Southover House, reduced parking income £121k, which is 
being offset by positive EBC staff recharge of £289k, overall, the budget and 
savings target need to be reviewed with the budget holder.    

Planning variance of £116k include the local plan that is being developed, which is 
an investment required every 4 years that will be funded as one-off from £255k 
reserves to support this activity.  

Regeneration underspend of £202k, this is net of £157k anticipated to be funded 
from reserves carried forward from last year. The £202k positive variance is an 
underspend on salaries and will need to be reviewed as part of revised budget and 
budget setting. 
 
 
 

Page 35



2.12  Tourism and Enterprise projected underspend of £30,300 

Tourism and Enterprise  Budget       
2022-23 

Actual & 
committed 

 Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance at 

year end 
  

£ 
£ £ £ 

Arts Development 5,900 (11,886) 3,700 
(2,200) 

Tourism 279,500 62,535 283,000 
3,500 

Leisure Centres and Swimming Pools 121,200 65,136 90,000 
(31,200) 

Newhaven Fort 102,350 102,916 102,000 
(350) 

Tourism and Enterprise  508,950 218,700 478,700 (30,250) 

 
The positive balance is an anticipated additional income from the solar panels at 
the swimming pools. 

2.13  Other Operating Income and Capital Financing and Reserve movements positive 
variance of £350,000 

Other Operating Income and Capital 
Financing & Reserve movements 

Budget       
2022-23 

Actual & 
committed 

 Projected 
Outturn 

Projected 
Variance at 

year end 
  

£ 
£ £ £ 

Contingencies 350,000 0 0 (350,000) 

Capital Financing and Interest 550,000 73,326 550,000 0 

Contributions to/(from) reserves Earmarked 841,000 0 841,000 0 

Note contribution from reserves 0 0 (661,500) 0 
 
There are no specific calls on the contingency budget which has been shown as 
contributing towards the bottom line. 

2.14  Please note that due to re-profiling and carry forwards the position has required the 
transfer in from reserves of £661,500, this could be offset against the budget to 
transfer to reserves £841,000, it is embedded the projected position, and has been 
shown above pending revised budget setting. 

3  Housing Revenue Account  
 

3.1  HRA performance for the quarter is as follows:  
 
HRA Summary Quarter 1   Original 

Budget  
 Projected 

Outturn  
 

Variance  

   £000's   £000's   £000's  
 Income  (17,752) (17,752)   
 Expenditure  16,047 16,046 (1) 
 Capital Financing  2,031 2,031   
 Total  326 325 (1) 

 
A further breakdown is shown at Appendix 1.  
 
 

Page 36



3.2  The position at the end of June shows a favourable variance in expenditure of £1k.  
 

3.3  A full review of the 30-year Business Plan is underway and will provide a more 
comprehensive assessment of the overall position for the current and future years.  
This will be reported to Members as part of the budget setting process for 2022/23. 
 

4  Capital Expenditure 
 

4.1  Capital Expenditure – General Fund 
 

4.2  The capital programme at Appendix 2 provides a detailed summary of spend for 
quarter 1 compared to the revised allocation for 2022/23. The Capital Programme 
(including slippages from 2021/22) for 2022/23 totals £35.7m compared to the 
original Capital Programme approved by Council 21 February 2022 of £26.5m. The 
summary of the General Fund Capital Programme movements are shown in the 
following table. 

 

   Original Other  Revised Q1  
Programme B/F Variation Programme Expenditure 

2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 
NON-HOUSING 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Recovery and 
Stabilisation             430  622 

- 
        1,052                 -  

Regeneration        16,660  5,865 -       22,525          2,066  
Asset Management           1,920  453 -         2,373               49  
Indoor Leisure Facilities             721  461 -         1,183                 8  
Energy Schemes          2,000  62 -         2,062               38  
Community Inf. Levy             900  - -            900                 7  
Service Delivery             227  90 720         1,037               23  
Specialist Projects             136  57 -            193                 -  
Coastal Defence Works             100  394 -            494                 -  
Parks, Pavilions, Open 
Space- Biodiversity          3,142  104 

- 
        3,246                 -  

IT Block Allocation             150  254 -            404                 -  
Finance Transformation              150  179 -            329                 -  

GENERAL FUND         26,536  
           

8,541             720        35,798          2,190  

4.3  The total spends and commitments at the end of June 2022 totalled £2.2m against 
a revised budget of £35.7m. The revised programme includes a proportion of the 
£19.3 million Government funding award for Newhaven, following the successful 
bid that focused on five core themes. 
 

4.4  Other variation relates to the waste and recycling services immediate purchase of 
second-hand recycling collection vehicles (RCVs), to replace six vehicles currently 
on hire, thus saving on significant hire costs that are presently being incurred. The 
Full Council at its meeting on 18 July 2002 approved the release of funding 
(£720,000) within this financial year (2022/23).  
 

4.5  At the end of Quarter 1 the spend against year 1 of the programme was very low 
and it is too soon to forecast what level of slippage we might anticipate into future 
years, but it is unlikely that all aspects of the programme will be deliverable this 

Page 37



year and so this will be kept under continuous review by the Capital Programme 
Overview Board (CPOB). 
 

4.6  Capital Expenditure – HRA 
 

4.7  The detailed HRA capital programme at Appendix 2, provides a summary of spend 
for quarter 1 compared to the allocation for 2022/23. The HRA Capital Programme 
(including slippages from 2021/22) for 2022/23 totals £21.3m compared to the 
original Capital Programme approved by Council 21 February 2022 of 15.3m. The 
changes to the Capital Programme are shown in the following table. 
 
HRA HOUSING 

 

Original Revised Q1  
Programme 

  
B/F Programme Expenditure 

2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 
  
SUMMARY 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Housing Investment   12,901   5,408   18,309   1,027  
General Fund Housing   1,487   172   1,659   25  
Housing Companies 
Loans  1,000   419   1,419   -  
TOTAL HOUSING  15,388   5,999   21,387   1,052  

4.8  The revised budget for the Housing Capital Programme for the year is £21.3m, with 
expenditure and commitments at the end of Quarter One of £1.05m. Capital 
budgets from the previous year have been carried forward to 2022/23, relating to 
the maintenance of the Council’s housing stock, and the New Build programme. 
 

4.9  Project team leaders will, as with every year, be encouraged to review scheme 
progress on an ongoing basis throughout the year and advise where there are 
significant revisions. Based on this information reprofiling will be undertaken where 
necessary to reflect these changes within the HRA Capital Programme. 
 

4.10  At the end of Quarter 1 the spend against year 1 of the programme was very low 
and it is too soon to forecast what level of slippage we might anticipate into future 
years, but it is unlikely that all aspects of the programme will be deliverable this 
year and so this will be kept under continuous review by the Capital Programme 
Overview Board (CPOB). 
 

5  Collection Fund 
 

5.1  The Collection Fund records all the income from Council Tax and Business Rates 
and its allocation to precepting authorities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



5.2  The Collection fund for the year is as follows: 
 Council 

Tax £’000 
Business 

Rates £’000 
Actual Balance 1 April 2022 - (Surplus) / Deficit  (3,692) 6,357 
Recovery/Distribution of Prior Year Deficit or Surplus 2,950 (3,659) 
Total Collectable Income for year* (87,050) (25,354) 
Payments to Preceptors 83,789 24,270 
Write offs, provisions for bad debts and appeals 420 690 
Estimated Balance 31 March 2023 – (Surplus) / 
Deficit  (3,583) 2,304 

Allocated to:   
Central Government - 1,152 
East Sussex County Council (2,534) 207 
Lewes District Council (540) 922 
Sussex Police & Crime Commissioner (353) - 
East Sussex Fire Authority (156) 23 
Total (3,583) 2,304 

 
* This represents the latest total amount of income due for the year and allows for 
changes as a result of discounts, exemptions and reliefs, as well as changes in the 
Council Tax and Business Rate bases.  
 

5.3  The allocation to preceptors reflects the operation of the Collection Fund for 
Council Tax and Business Rates which are distributed on different bases under 
regulations. The distributions have now been finalised for 2022/23 in line with the 
above allocations. 
 

5.4  Council Tax has a forecast surplus for the year of £3.583m as at the end of June.  
The Council’s share of the estimated surplus is £540k.  
 

5.5  Business Rates has a forecast deficit for the year of £2.304m at the end of June.  
The Council’s share of the estimated deficit is £922k.  
 

5.6  The final surplus or deficit positions for Council Tax and Business Rates budget 
setting will be formalised in January 2023. 
 

6  Financial appraisal 
 

6.1 As set out in the report 
 

7  Legal implications 
 

7.1 None associated with the report. 
 

8  Risk management implications 
 

8.1 Continued monitoring of the Council’s financial position is essential to ensure it 
remains within budget and can take necessary action if and when required. 
 
 

Page 39



9  Equality analysis 
 

9.1 This Finance update is a routine report for which detailed Equality Analysis is not 
required to be undertaken. The equality implications of individual decisions relating 
to the projects/services covered in this report are addressed within other relevant 
Council reports. 
 

10  Environmental sustainability implications 
 

10.1  None associated with the report. 
 

11  Appendices 
 

 • Appendix 1 – Housing Revenue Account 
• Appendix 2 – Capital Programme 

 
12  Background papers 

 
 • None 

 
 

Page 40



Housing Revenue Account 2022/23 

Original 
Budget 

Projected 
Outturn Variance 

£000's £000's £000's 

INCOME 
Dwelling Rents (15,798) (15,798) 0 
Non-Dwelling Rents (484) (484) 0 
Charges for Services and Facilities (1,276) (1,276) 0 
Contributions towards Expenditure (194) (194) 0 
GROSS INCOME (17,752) (17,752) 0 

EXPENDITURE 
Repairs and Maintenance 4,834 4,834 0 
Supervision and Management 3,530 3,530 0 
Special Services 1,454 1,453 (1) 
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 280 280 0 
Increase in Impairment of Debtors 148 148 0 
Depreciation of Fixed Assets 5,450 5,450 0 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 3 3 0 
Debt Management Costs 52 52 0 
GROSS EXPENDITURE 15,751 15,750 (1) 

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (2,001) (2,002) (1) 

HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Core 296 296 0 
NET OPERATING COST OF HRA (1,705) (1,706) (1) 

Capital Financing and Interest Charges 
Interest Payable 2,043 2,043 0 
Interest Receivable  (12) (12) 0 
Revenue Contributions to Capital Expenditure 0 0 0 
Total Capital Financing and Interest Charges 2,031 2,031 0 

Transfer to (from) Reserves 0 0 0 

HRA (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 326 325 (1) 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT WORKING BALANCE 
Original 
Budget 

Projected 
Outturn 

Working Balance at 1 April (4,406) (4,406) 
(Surplus) or Deficit for the year 326 325 
Working Balance at 31 March (4,080) (4,081) 

Allocation of Working Balance: 
- General Working Balance (3,535) (3,536) 
- Special Projects (270) (270) 
- Self Insurance (275) (275) 

Working Balance at 31 March (4,080) (4,081) 

Appendix 1

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23

  Original 
Programme 

2022/23 

 2021/22 
Underspend 

B/F 

 Cabinet 
Approved 
variations 

 Revised 
2022/23 

Programme 

 Q1 Actual 
Spend    

2022-23 
 Q1 Variance 

2022/23 

£ £ £ £ £ £
HRA HOUSING INVESTMENT CAPITAL PROGRAMME
 Construction of New Dwellings
     - New Acquisitions & New Build 9,336,000      3,938,040      -                 13,274,040    -                 13,274,040   
     - Newhaven Police Station Redevelopment -                     -                 -                     612,951     612,951-        
     - Newhaven Fire Station Redevelopment -                     -                 -                     750            750-               
      -The Lynchetts, Lewes -                     -                 -                     5,155         5,155-            
     - Oakfield House, Plumpton Green -                     -                 -                     4,754         4,754-            

 Improvements to Stock 3,565,000      1,470,144      -                 5,035,144      -                 5,035,144     
     - Heating Improvement Programme -                     -                     -                 -                     119,699     119,699-        
     - Roofing & Chimney Works -                     -                     -                 -                     240            240-               
     - Structural Works -                     -                     -                 -                     52,072       52,072-          
     - Electrical T & R -                     -                     -                 -                     74,176       74,176-          

 Improvements to Stock - OTHER - not included in survey
     - Adaptations for Disabled Tenants -                     -                     -                 -                     157,483     157,483-        

Total HRA Housing 12,901,000    5,408,184      -                 18,309,184    1,027,279  17,281,905   

GF HOUSING INVESTMENT CAPITAL PROGRAMME
 Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 1,487,000      172,238         -                 1,659,238      24,200       1,635,038     
 Private Sector Housing Grants -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 -                    
   - Emergency Repair Grants -                     -                     -                 -                     515            515-               
Total General Fund Housing 1,487,000      172,238         -                 1,659,238      24,715       1,634,523     

Loans to Housing Companies
   - Aspiration Homes LLP (Loan for Delivery of Mixed Tenure Homes) 1,000,000      419,055         -                 1,419,055      -                 1,419,055     
Total Loans to Housing Companies 1,000,000      419,055         -                 1,419,055      -                 1,419,055     

TOTAL HOUSING 15,388,000    5,999,477      -                 21,387,477    1,051,994  20,335,483   

GENERAL FUND NON HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME
JTP -                     -                     -                 -                     -                    
 Recovery and Reset Programme 430,000         621,736         -                 1,051,736      -                 1,051,736     
Total JTP 430,000         621,736         -                 1,051,736      -                 1,051,736     

Regeneration 
 Commercial Property Acquisition & Development 2,000,000      -                 2,000,000      -                 2,000,000     

 North Street Quarter, Lewes
   NSQ - North Street Quarter 300,000         71,614-           -                 228,386         -                 228,386        
   NSQ - Springman House 100,000         -                 100,000         -                 100,000        
 Asset Development Newhaven (November 2017) (September 2018) -                     652,932         -                 652,932         -                 652,932        
Newhaven High Street- Newhaven Re-imagining 4,165,870      3,163,706      -                 7,329,576      325,723     7,003,853     
 Construction of Avis Way Depot, Newhaven (July 2018) 1,300,000      32,680           -                 1,332,680      -                 1,332,680     
The Sidings, Railway Quay, Newhaven -                     154,417         -                 154,417         21,784       132,633        
     - UTC (Newhaven) 1,534,090      724,350         -                 2,258,440      503,023     1,755,417     
Caburn House, Lewes Refurbishment 170,000         90,376           -                 260,376         176,548     83,828          
The Friars Redevelopment, Lewes 1,000,000      -                     -                 1,000,000      -                 1,000,000     
Re-connecting our Town: Pedestrian Gateway 3,906,510      307,951         -                 4,214,461      94,517       4,119,944     
Re-connecting our Town: Wayfinding & Visitor Trails -                     -                     -                 -                     5,800         5,800-            
An Active Community: Fort Road Recreation Ground -                     -                     -                 -                     8,974         8,974-            
An Active Community: Newhaven Football Club -                     -                     -                 -                     215,999     215,999-        
Destination Newhaven: Newhaven Port -                     -                     -                 -                     41,500       41,500-          
Newhaven Fishing Landing Stages: 2,183,480      810,380         -                 2,993,860      -                 2,993,860     
Unit 7 Oak Estate – Newhaven Processing Facility -                     -                     -                 -                     672,100     672,100-        
Newhaven West Beach Restaurant -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 -                    
Total Regeneration 16,659,950    5,865,178      -                 22,525,128    2,065,968  20,459,160   

Asset Management
Asset Management Block Allocation 1,920,000      452,928         -                 2,372,928      -                 2,372,928     
Lewes (Stanley Turner Recreation Ground Improvements) (Feb 2018) -                     -                     -                 -                     3,549         3,549-            
Car Parks - (Capital Maintenance Programme) -                     -                     -                 -                     4,810         4,810-            
 Flint Walls Repairs (November 2015) -                     -                     -                 -                     16,200       16,200-          
Newhaven Fort Refurbishment -                     -                     -                 -                     1,155         1,155-            
Public Conveniences -                     -                 -                     22,918       22,918-          
Changing Places Toilets -                     -                     -                 -                     -                 -                    

Appendix  2

Page 43



Total Asset Management 1,920,000      452,928         -                 2,372,928      48,631       2,324,297     

Indoor Leisure Facilities - Major Repairs and Improvements (Block allocation)80,000           461,322         -                 541,322         -                 541,322        
Lewes, Peacehaven & Downs (Leisure Centres),Seahaven Swim and Fitness, 641,200         -                     -                 641,200         -                 641,200        
Seahaven Swim and Fitness, Newhaven Priority Works -                     -                     -                 -                     7,864         7,864-            
Total Indoor Leisure Facilities 721,200         461,322         -                 1,182,522      7,864         1,174,658     

Local Energy Schemes 2,000,000      -                     -                 2,000,000      -                 2,000,000     
OVESCO- Ouse Valley Solar Farm -                     62,000           -                 62,000           38,000       24,000          
Total Energy Schemes 2,000,000      62,000           -                 2,062,000      38,000       2,024,000     

Community Infrastructure 900,000         -                     -                 900,000         7,389         892,611        
Total Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 900,000         -                     -                 900,000         7,389         892,611        

Service Delivery
  Vehicle & Plant Replacement Programme 227,000         89,660           720,000     1,036,660      -                 1,036,660     
    - Other Equipment -                     -                     -                 -                     15,058       15,058-          
    - MOT Test Equipment (Roller Brake Tester and Headlamp Aligner) -                     -                     -                 -                     7,485         7,485-            
Total Service Delivery 227,000         89,660           720,000     1,036,660      22,543       1,014,117     

Specialist 136,000         57,225           193,225         -                 193,225        
Total Specialist Projects 136,000         57,225           -                 193,225         -                 193,225        

Coastal Defence Works 100,000         394,280         -                 494,280         -                 494,280        
Total Coastal Defence Works 100,000         394,280         -                 494,280         -                 494,280        

 Parks, Pavilions etc - Remedial works 962,300         44,077           -                 1,006,377      -                 1,006,377     
Open Space 180,000         40,010           -                 220,010         -                 220,010        
New Crematorium & Green Burial Facility (Biodiversity) 2,000,000      20,000           -                 2,020,000      -                 2,020,000     
Total Parks, Pavilions, Open Space- Biodiversity 3,142,300      104,087         -                 3,246,387      -                 3,246,387     

  IT Block Allocation 150,000         253,615         -                 403,615         -                 403,615        
-                     

Finance -                     
  Finance Transformation (Feb 2019) 150,000         179,310         -                 329,310         -                 329,310        
Total General Fund Non Housing Capital Programme 26,536,450    8,541,341      720,000     35,797,791    2,190,395  33,607,396   

-                     -                    
TOTAL OVERALL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 41,924,450    14,540,818    720,000     57,185,268    3,242,389  53,942,879   

Page 44



 
Report to: Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 

 
Date: 
 

14 September 2022 

Title: Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund 
  
Report of: Tim Whelan, Director of Service Delivery 
  
Ward(s): 
 

All 

Purpose of Cabinet 
report: 
 

To consider the proposed Lewes District Council Cost of 
Living Emergency Fund Scheme 
 

Officer 
recommendations to 
the Cabinet: 

(1) Cabinet approves the Lewes District Council Cost of  
Living Emergency Fund Scheme, as specified in the 
proposal at paragraph 2 of this report. 
 

(2) To authorise the Director of Service Delivery in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Assistant Director of Finance to finalise the scheme 
criteria any take necessary steps to implement the 
Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund 
Scheme. 

 

Recommendations to 
the Committee 
 

The recommendations are detailed at 1.3 of this report 

Reasons for 
recommendations to 
the Committee: 
 

To provide a critical friend challenge to the Cabinet decision 
and policy making process. 

Contact Officer(s): Name: Nick Peeters 
Post title: Committee Officer 
E-mail: nick.peeters@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01323 415272 

 
1 Introduction 

 
1.1  In its role as a provider of public scrutiny and as critical friend, the Policy and 

Performance Advisory Committee has a duty to provide a challenge to the 
executive decision and policy makers.  
 

1.2  The Policy and Performance Advisory Committee is able to provide this 
challenge through the inclusion of the Council’s Forward Plan of Decisions as a 
standing item on each of the Committee’s agendas, allowing the Committee to 
request the inclusion of reports due for consideration by the Cabinet on its 
agenda and by asking that the relevant officers, heads of service or directors, 
attend the Committee meetings and discuss the content of the reports. 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6c



1.3  Following consideration of each item, where the Members will be able to ask 
questions of the relevant officers, heads of service, directors and other 
stakeholders, the Policy and Performance Advisory Committee will provide one 
of the following three recommendations to the Cabinet: 
 
1) To support the recommendations in the report in full; or  
 
2) To support the recommendation in the report subject to the consideration   

by the Cabinet of any amendments agreed by Committee; or 
 
3) To not support the recommendations in the report and give reasons. 
 

1.4  The Cabinet will be provided with the recommendations from the Policy and 
Performance Advisory Committee when it considers the main report. 
 

2 Financial / Legal / Risk Management / Equality Analysis/ Environmental 
Sustainability Implications/ Background Papers 
 

2.1 All implications are addressed in the Cabinet report attached at Appendix 1.  
 

 • Appendix 1 – Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund 
  

 

Page 46



 
Report to:  Cabinet 

 
Date: 22 September 2022 

 
Title:  Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund  

 
Report of: Tim Whelan, Director of Service Delivery 

 
Cabinet member: 
 

Councillor Zoe Nicholson, Deputy Leader of Council, 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets 
 

Ward(s): 
 

All 
 

Purpose of report: 
 

To consider the proposed Lewes District Council Cost of 
Living Emergency Fund Scheme 
 

Decision type: 
 

Key 

Officer 
recommendation(s): 

(1) Cabinet approves the Lewes District Council Cost of 
Living Emergency Fund Scheme, as specified in the 
proposal at paragraph 2 of this report. 
 
(2) To authorise the Director of Service Delivery in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Assistant Director of Finance to finalise the scheme criteria 
any take necessary steps to implement the Lewes District 
Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund Scheme. 
  

Reasons for 
recommendations: 
 

Cabinet approval is required for the scheme to be 
implemented. 

Contact Officer: Name: Bill McCafferty 
Post title: Lead for Income Maximisation and Welfare 
E-mail: bill.mccafferty@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01323) 415171 
 

 
1  Introduction 

 
1.1  The country is in the grip of a cost-of-living crisis. The annual inflation rate in the 

UK increased to 9.4% in June 2022, which is the highest rate since 1982. The 
rate is being driven by the increased costs of fuel and energy as well as rising 
prices for food. 
 

1.2  In its March 2022 forecast, the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) expected 
household incomes after tax and adjusted for inflation to start falling in Q2 of 
2022 and to not recover until Q3 2024  
 
 

Page 47



1.3 Responding to this, the Council has acted for its residents by: 
 

• Increasing, from April 2021, the maximum Council Tax Reduction from 
80% to 100% of a person’s liability, meaning the most disadvantaged do 
not have to pay anything 

• declaring a cost-of-living emergency at the Full Council meeting on 18 
July 2022   

• allocating £500,000 to a Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency  
Fund 

• agreed a new £250,000 Cost of Living Crisis Fund, with the first £50,000 
immediately being awarded to foodbanks to help meet the 
unprecedentedly high levels of need in the district now. The remaining 
£200,000 will be distributed through a grants programme in the autumn 
and fund the creation of a dedicated officer to coordinate the funding.  

  
1.4 The Government is providing support in the form of: 

 
• A £150 Council Tax (Energy) Rebate to those persons liable for Council 

Tax residing in a Ban A to D property 
• A Discretionary Council Tax (Energy) Rebate aimed at those liable for 

Council Tax in Bands E to H and on a low income  
• A Household Support Fund distributed to the Council to help with utility 

costs and food  
• A cost-of-living payment of £650, paid in two instalments, to those 

households on one of the following benefits - Universal Credit, Income 
Related Employment and Support Allowance, Income Based Jobseeker’s 
Allowance, Income Support, Pension Credit, Child Tax Credit, Working 
Tax Credit. It should be noted that those residents in receipt of Housing 
Benefit or a Council Tax Reduction, but not on any of these benefits, will 
not receive this payment 

• A payment of £150 to those on certain disability benefits  
• A credit of £400 to be applied to household energy bills 
• An increase of £300 on the Winter Fuel Payment for pensioners  

 
The Council administers the Energy Rebate schemes and has received funding 
form County to administer a local Household Support Fund. 
 

2  Proposal 
 

2.1  It is proposed that the Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund of 
£500k, £170k of which is allocated to be spent on Lewes District Council 
tenants, is aimed at those residents on a low income but who do not benefit from 
the Government’s cost-of-living payment of £650.  

2.2  The mechanisms of eligibility to a means-tested benefit means that people 
whose income is just £1 above certain levels will not qualify and miss out on the 
£650 payment. It is one of the aims of the local scheme to capture those 
residents who just miss out.   

 

Page 48



2.3 The proposed scheme will make an award to those residents who; 
 

i. do not receive the Government payment of £650.00 and who have less 
than £6,000 in savings; and 

ii. are in receipt of Housing Benefit and/or a Council Tax reduction but not 
in receipt of any other means-tested benefit, or  

iii. have weekly net income below the set levels. Those levels are: 
 

• For a single person - £320 
• For a lone parent - £370 
• For a couple - £420 
• For a couple with children - £470 

 
The eligibility criteria is at Appendix 1. 
 

2.4 The rationale for proposing these levels is that they are above the amount at 
which most families would receive a means-tested benefit or a Council Tax 
Reduction and below the average earnings for Lewes District. 
 
The average earnings in Lewes in 2020/21, taken from East Sussex in Figures 
(ESiF) data is £671 per week, which equates to £470 per week after tax and 
national insurance. 
 
The maximum net incomes have been adjusted to consider the make-up of a 
household. 
  

2.5 The Government have just published draft guidance on the new Household 
Support Fund which is to run from 1 October 2022 to 31 March 2023 and the 
Council will be in discussions with East Sussex County Council and the other 
East Sussex Councils on how this will operate and the level of award. 
 

2.6 Once it is decided what the level of award is to be under the new Household 
Support Fund the Council’s Cost of Living Emergency Fund will provide an 
additional award to top-this up to £650.00. 
 

2.7 The scheme will go live on 1 October 2022 and run until the funds are 
extinguished. Applications will be made online through a Portal to enable 
efficient processing and reduce the risk of fraud. Support will be available for 
those who may struggle to make an online application. 
 

2.8 Only one award per household during the lifetime of the scheme will be made. 
 

3  Outcome expected and performance management 
 

3.1  The fund will support those people who are most affected by the cost-of-living 
crisis, but miss out on the Government’s £650 payment, in assisting them to 
meet their energy costs, including those households that use oil to heat their 
homes, and put food on the table. 
 

3.2  Monthly monitoring of spend will ensure the budget is not exceeded. 
 

Page 49



4  Consultation 
 

4.1  Discussions around the scheme have taken place with the Citizens Advice 
Bureau. 
 

5  Corporate plan and council policies  
 

5.1  The scheme will provide financial support to those residents most in need. 
 

6  Business case and alternative option(s) considered 
 

6.1  The proposed scheme is considered to offer targeted support to those most in 
need after taking into consideration the other sources of financial support 
available.  
 

7  Financial appraisal 
 

7.1  There will be a cost involved in setting up the on-line application process and in 
securing the resources to administer the scheme. This is estimated to be 
c£1,000.00 for the application and £25,000.00 for the staffing resource. This 
scheme is cash limited and will cease once the allocated budget is fully utilised.  
 

8  Legal implications 
 

8.1  As the executive, Cabinet has authority to approve the Lewes District Council 
Cost of Living Emergency Fund Scheme. Delegated powers granted to the 
Director of Service Delivery should ensure the Scheme is implemented, 
managed and amended as necessary to maintain overall compliance. 
 
Legal advice given 31.08.22                                                                  Legal ref: 011367-LDC-OD 
 

9  Risk management implications 
 

9.1  There are three main risks: 
- That expenditure exceeds the budget. This will be managed by regular 

monitoring of spend and as stated at 7.1 the scheme will cease once the 
budget has been spent. 

- That expenditure does not reach the expected levels. There will be the 
ability, through delegated powers, to amend eligibility criteria. 

- The fund does not reach those eligible. The Council will target those hard- 
to-reach groups who are most vulnerable and will be working with 
partners in the voluntary sector to achieve this.  

 
10  Equality analysis 

 
10.1  An Equality & Fairness Analysis has been undertaken on these proposals. This 

has concluded that the cost-of-living crisis is likely to impact household budgets 
across the board, with utilities, food products and fuel increasing in price. 
Working-age people on low-incomes or squeezed budgets are likely to impacted 
more as the year progresses, as well as older people particularly by increased 
heating costs in autumn and winter. 

Page 50



 
Residents in rural locations who rely on oil to heat their homes will be subject to 
increased oil costs. People reliant on cars, including those in rural locations, 
could be impacted by increased running costs. Food items have already seen 
some price increases, and households – particularly larger ones – are likely to 
feel that increased cost. 
 
Women are disproportionately affected by domestic abuse and more likely to be 
the resident parent in separated families. 
 

It is hoped these proposals will go some way towards mitigating the generally 
negative impacts brought by the cost of living crisis. 
 
 

11  Environmental sustainability implications 
 

11.1  There are no adverse sustainability implications in this report. 
 

12  Contribution to Community Wealth Building  
 

12.1  Not only will the Cost of Living Emergency Fund help residents manage the 
cost-of-living crisis but will also increase spend in the local economy.  
 

13  Appendices 
 

 • Appendix 1 – Eligibility criteria 
 

14  Background papers 
 

 • None 
 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund 
LOCAL ELIGIBILITY FRAMEWORK 

 
 
Introduction 
 
Lewes District Council have, along with other measures, set aside £500,000 as a 
fund to support residents in managing the cost-of-living crisis. 

Eligibility criteria 
 

• Applicants must be over the age of 18  
• Resident in the Lewes District Council area 
• Have less than £6,000 in capital 
• Not be in receipt of one of the following means tested benefits – 

o Universal Credit 
o Pension Credit 
o Working Tax Credit 
o Child Tax Credit 
o Income Support 
o Income Based Job-Seeker’s Allowance 
o Income-related Employment and Support Allowance 

• Be in receipt of Housing Benefit or a Council Tax reduction but not in receipt 
of one of the benefits listed above; or 

• Have a weekly net income below the following levels -  
o Single person - £320.00 
o Lone parent - £370.00 
o Couple - £420.00 
o Couple with children - £470.00 

 
Income and capital will be calculated in line with the Housing Benefit regulations 
 
Scheme awards 
There will be one award of £(to be decided) to a household during the lifetime of this 
scheme. 
 
Applications 
 
Will be made through an on-line application process. 
 
Complaints and appeals 
Complaints will be dealt with under the Council’s Complaints procedure. 
 
There is no right of appeal under this scheme.  
 
 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report to: Policy and Performance Advisory Committee 

 
Date: 
 

14 September 2022 

Title: Housing development update 
  
Report of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 

Regeneration and Planning 
  
Ward(s): 
 

All 

Purpose of Cabinet 
report: 
 

To provide an update on the progress of the housing 
delivery programme. 
 

Officer 
recommendations to 
the Cabinet: 

1) To approve the updated business case (Appendix 1 - 
Exempt) and Capital Budget Allocation (up to £7.1m) for 
the project known as the Former Newhaven Police 
Station within the capacity of the HRA Capital 
Programme. 

 
2) To authorise the Director of Regeneration and Planning, 

in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing and 
Chief Finance Officer, to carry out all necessary actions 
to facilitate the project including financing, feasibility, 
development and determining the terms of, and 
authorising the execution of, all necessary 
documentation. 
 

Recommendations to 
the Committee 
 

The recommendations are detailed at 1.3 of this report 

Reasons for 
recommendations to 
the Committee: 
 

To provide a critical friend challenge to the Cabinet decision 
and policy making process. 

Contact Officer(s): Name: Nick Peeters 
Post title: Committee Officer 
E-mail: nick.peeters@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01323 415272 

 
1 Introduction 

 
1.1  In its role as a provider of public scrutiny and as critical friend, the Policy and 

Performance Advisory Committee has a duty to provide a challenge to the 
executive decision and policy makers.  
 

1.2  The Policy and Performance Advisory Committee is able to provide this 
challenge through the inclusion of the Council’s Forward Plan of Decisions as a 
standing item on each of the Committee’s agendas, allowing the Committee to 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6d



request the inclusion of reports due for consideration by the Cabinet on its 
agenda and by asking that the relevant officers, heads of service or directors, 
attend the Committee meetings and discuss the content of the reports. 
 

1.3  Following consideration of each item, where the Members will be able to ask 
questions of the relevant officers, heads of service, directors and other 
stakeholders, the Policy and Performance Advisory Committee will provide one 
of the following three recommendations to the Cabinet: 
 
1) To support the recommendations in the report in full; or  
 
2) To support the recommendation in the report subject to the consideration   

by the Cabinet of any amendments agreed by Committee; or 
 
3) To not support the recommendations in the report and give reasons. 
 

1.4  The Cabinet will be provided with the recommendations from the Policy and 
Performance Advisory Committee when it considers the main report. 
 

2 Financial / Legal / Risk Management / Equality Analysis/ Environmental 
Sustainability Implications/ Background Papers 
 

2.1 All implications are addressed in the Cabinet report attached at Appendix 1.  
 

 • Appendix 1 – Housing development update 
  

 

Page 56



 

  
Report to: Cabinet 

 
Date: 22 September 2022 

 
Title: 
 

Housing development update 
 

Report of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Regeneration and Planning 
 

Cabinet member: 
 

Councillor William Meyer, Lead Cabinet Member for Housing  

Ward(s): 
 

Newhaven South 

Purpose of report: 
 

To provide an update on the progress of the housing delivery 
programme. 
  

Decision type: 
 

Key Decision 

Officer 
recommendation(s): 

(1) To approve the updated business case (Appendix 1 - 
Exempt) and Capital Budget Allocation (up to £7.1m) 
for the project known as the Former Newhaven Police 
Station within the capacity of the HRA Capital 
Programme. 

 (2) To authorise the Director of Regeneration and 
Planning, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Chief Finance Officer, to carry out all 
necessary actions to facilitate the project including 
financing, feasibility, development and determining 
the terms of, and authorising the execution of, all 
necessary documentation. 
 

Reasons for 
recommendations: 
 

To provide progress updates and secure the necessary 
approvals to bring forward ongoing key housing 
development projects within the district. 
 

Contact Officer(s): Name: Marc Stephens  
Post title: Capital Delivery Lead 
E-mail: Marc.Stephens@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
 
Name: Nathan Haffenden  
Post title: Head of Development, Investment and Delivery 
E-mail: nathan.haffenden@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01323 436422 
 

 
1  Introduction 

 
1.1  
 
 

This paper provides a progress and budget update on the new Council housing 
project at the Former Newhaven Police Station. 

Page 57



 

2   Background 
 

2.1  
 

In September 2021, Cabinet approved the business case to enable the 
redevelopment of the former Police Station in Newhaven to create 21 x new 
affordable homes (19 x flats and 2 x houses) with high sustainable features, 
including PV solar panels, green living roof, and high performing thermal 
elements. This business case included the purchase of the land from Sussex 
Police and the allocation of a budget within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Capital Programme of up to £6.2m. 

2.2  This business case was based on a tender figure that was received from 
Sunninghill Construction Co Ltd in July 2021, the preferred contractor. This tender 
figure was secured for 120 days, through to 23rd November 2021. 
 

2.3  In June 2022, a report was presented to Cabinet (‘Housing Development Update’) 
setting out the current economic environment and specific inflationary impacts on 
the construction sector nationally. These unprecedented challenges will have 
implications to projects not already in contract and will require a review to ensure 
ongoing viability. 
 

3  Project Update 
 

3.1  Following Cabinet approval in September 2021, the purchase was unexpectedly 
delayed and did not complete until April 2022. The tender figure from the 
contractor therefore become invalid and had to be updated to reflect changes in 
the market over that period.  

3.2  The contractor has re-engaged with their supply chains and subsequently updated 
their original tender figure to reflect the current market valid up to 03/10/2022. 
Following the purchase of the site, Sunninghill have been engaged to carry our 
initial enabling works and site security, to ensure works can continue at pace and 
the Council-owned site is sufficiently protected. 

3.3  The project costs for this development have therefore increased and so require a 
variance to the previously approved capital budget from £6.2m up to £7.1m in 
order to award the full construction contract. This includes the cost of the land, 
construction costs, and all associated project on-costs. 

3.4  As set out in Appendix 1 (Exempt), the increased costs will be minimised mainly 
through the additional use of available Right to Buy (RTB) receipts which, 
following the statutory reforms in 2021, allow the authority to finance up to 40% of 
the development costs from those retained 1-4-1 receipts. The changes in market 
rents nationally have also changed however the Council continues to maintain 
levels at circa 60% of the market, which is approximately 67% of the 2022/23 
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) levels. 

3.5  With the increased costs being supported by a combination of additional subsidy 
and income, the scheme remains deliverable within the capacity of the HRA 
Capital Programme and tolerances of the HRA Business Plan. and will be reported 
in the next budget update.  

Page 58



 

3.6  All the homes will continue to be developed and owned within the HRA and rented 
out as affordable Council housing, managed by Homes First. 

4  Outcome expected and performance management 
 

4.1  The overall outcomes of the recommendations will be the continued delivery of 
the Council’s HRA Capital Programme to meet corporate objectives to bring 
forward more Council homes that meet local housing need.  
 

5  Consultation 
 

5.1  Local consultation has been undertaken on site prior to the planning application 
being submitted, as well during the statutory consultation process. Additional 
consultation has also been carried out with Ward Councillors and the Town 
Council will continue to be engaged with as the scheme move towards on-site 
works commencing.   
 

6  Corporate plan and council policies  
 

6.1  The new housing delivered will contribute to the housing targets as set-out in the 
Corporate Plan 2020-2024 – Reimagining Lewes District. The programme will 
increase the number of rented homes directly accessible to the Council and 
increase sustainable development. 
 

7  Next Steps 

7.1 Following approval of this report, the formal appointment of a contractor will be 
made, and the demolition of the existing building carried out by the end of the 
calendar year. A target completion of the development works has been 
programmed for 2023/24 Q4. 
 

8  Financial implications 
 

8.1 
 
 

The proposals outlined within this report are in accordance with the HRA Business 
Plan and Capital Programme approved for 2022/23. 
 

8.2  The HRA Revenue Budget and Rent Setting 2022/23 and HRA Capital 
Programme 2020-24 includes the overall allocation for new acquisitions and new 
construction. The outline plan for projects being covered by this allocation is 
covered in the July 2021 Cabinet Report entitled ‘Housing Development Update’ 
and includes an allocation for the Former Newhaven Police Station Site.   
 

9  Legal implications 
 

9.1 The Council can rely on section 9 of the Housing Act 1985 (HA 1985) to undertake 
the development. This is a power to provide sub-market rented housing for its 
area i.e., to address a gap in the housing market and meet the needs of the local 
community. Right to Buy will apply to these properties. 
 
In disposing of properties, Section 32 of the HA 1985 permits the Council to let on 
secure tenancies without the requirement for Secretary of State consent.   
 

Page 59



 

 The Council will take full advice on any title issues associated with the 
development and in respect of appropriate ways to address any issues revealed. 
 
 
[011347-LDC-PB 23 August 2022]  
 

10  Risk management implications 
 

10.1  The key risks and mitigations are set out in the following table: 
 
Ref Risk Mitigations 
1 External/world pressures (CV-

19, war in Ukraine, Brexit) 
increasing construction/fuel 
costs, inflation and impacts on 
development viability 
 

Entering into a fixed price D&B 
contract now will secure the 
development cost and enable the 
council to monitor spend moving 
forward.  
 

2 Security risk and vandalism to 
an empty Council own building 

The former police station is now empty 
and enabling works have installed 
temporary security measures to stop 
unwanted access. Once in contract, 
the security responsibility will sit with 
the contractor until completion. 

  
11 
 

Equality analysis 

11.1 The reports previously presented to Cabinet for the proposed development were 
subject to Equality and Fairness (E&F) assessments. This update does not affect 
the proposed development and only relates to an increased budget allocation 
therefore an additional analysis is not required. 
It should be noted, the development includes a disabled ready unit and this will be 
designed for the individual needs of the tenant once they have been identified 
during the construction process.  
 
 
 

12 Environmental impact analysis 
 

12.1 The previous approved report from September 2021 outlined the measure 
undertaken and being taken forward. This updated report does not affect this as 
it relates only to an increased budget allocation.  
 

13 Contribution to Community Wealth Building 
 

13.1 The construction contract was advertised and assessed using a social value 
assessment toolkit that has been designed around the Corporate Plan objectives, 
including those focused on Community Wealth Building. As part of the main 
contract, Sunninghill Contractors have signed up to support up to 12 local people 
with a combination of work experience, NVQs and apprenticeships. They have 
also pledged up to £10k to support local voluntary and community groups with 
local fundraising and other initiatives 
 

Page 60



 

14 Appendices 
 

14.1 • Appendix 1 (Exempt) – Updated Business Case. 
 

15 Background papers 
 

15.1 The background papers used in compiling this report were as follows:  
 

• LDC Cabinet Report (10th February 2020) - Former Police and Fire Station 
Sites, Newhaven 

• LDC Cabinet Report (8th July 2021) – Housing Development Update. 
• LDC Cabinet Report (23rd September 2021) – Housing Development 

Update 
• LDC Cabinet Report (23rd June 2022) – Housing Development Update 

 
 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

Agenda Item 7a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

September 2022 

 

FORWARD PLAN OF DECISIONS 
 

Period covered by this Plan: 1 September to 31 December 2022 
Date of publication: 24 August 2022 

 
Membership of Cabinet: 
 
Councillor James MacCleary: Leader of the Council and Cabinet member for regeneration and prosperity  
 
Councillor Zoe Nicholson: Deputy leader of the Council, Chair of Cabinet and Cabinet member for finance and assets 
 
Councillor Matthew Bird: Cabinet member for sustainability 
 
Councillor Julie Carr: Cabinet member for recycling and open spaces 
 
Councillor Chris Collier: Cabinet member for performance and people 
 
Councillor Johnny Denis: Cabinet member for communities and customers 
 
Councillor Stephen Gauntlett: Cabinet member for planning and infrastructure 
 
Councillor William Meyer: Cabinet member for housing 
 
Councillor Ruth O'Keeffe: Cabinet member for tourism and devolution 
 
Please see the explanatory note appended to this Plan for further information and details of how to make representations and otherwise 
contact the Council on matters listed in the Plan.  Documents referred to will be available at least 5 clear working days before the date for 
decision. 
 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 8



 

Page 2 
 

Forthcoming decisions: 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Finance update - 
performance quarter 1 - 
2022-2023 
 
To provide an update on 
the Council’s financial 
performance, revenue 
budgets and capital 
programme to the end of 
quarter 1 2022/2023 and 
explain the impact on the 
current financial position. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 22 Sep 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Audit and 
Standards 
Committee 
Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee 

Report Chief Finance Officer 
(Homira Javadi)  
 
Ola Owolabi, Deputy 
Chief Finance Officer - 
Corporate Finance  
ola.owolabi@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk,  
 
Sian Hedger, Interim 
Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer  
sian.hedger@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
  
 

P
age 66

mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 3 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Portfolio progress and 
performance report 
quarter 1 - 2022-2023 
 
To update Members on 
the Council’s 
performance against 
corporate plan priority 
actions, performance 
indicators and targets 
over the quarter 1 
2022/23 period. 
 
Report to also review 
and provide a summary 
of achievements 
achieved in year 2 of the 
Corporate Plan 2020-24. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Chris Collier) 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Non-Key Cabinet 22 Sep 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee 

Report Director of Regeneration 
and Planning  
(Ian Fitzpatrick)  
 
Luke Dreeling, 
Performance Lead  
luke.dreeling@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 67

mailto:luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 4 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Lewes Household 
Support Scheme 
 
To present options for 
the Lewes Household 
Support Scheme. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 22 Sep 2022 Open 
 
 
 

There will be a 
public 
consultation. 

Report Director of Service 
Delivery (Tim Whelan)  
 
Bill McCafferty, Lead for 
Income Maximisation and 
Welfare Tel: (01323) 
415171 
bill.mccafferty@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 68

mailto:bill.mccafferty@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:bill.mccafferty@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 5 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Sustainable Energy 
Investment 
 
To consider a business 
case for developing 
further sustainable 
energy investments and 
in partnership with the 
industry, combining local 
authority spending power 
with market specialists. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Budget and 
policy 
framework  

Cabinet 
 
Full Council 

22 Sep 2022 
 
26 Sep 2022 

Fully exempt 
 
Exempt 
information 
reason: 3 
 

Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee  
(if requested). 

Report Director of Regeneration 
and Planning  
(Ian Fitzpatrick) 
 
Nathan Haffenden, Head 
of Commercial Business 
Development  
Tel: (01323) 410000 
nathan.haffenden@lewes
-eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 69

mailto:nathan.haffenden@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:nathan.haffenden@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 6 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Housing development 
update 
 
The report will provide 
updates on housing 
development projects 
across Lewes District 
Council that the District 
Council is proposing to 
develop. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor William 
Meyer) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 22 Sep 2022 Part Exempt 
 
Exempt 
information 
reason: 3 
 

Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee  
(if required) 

Report Director of Regeneration 
and Planning  
(Ian Fitzpatrick)  
 
Nathan Haffenden, Head 
of Commercial Business 
Development  
Tel: (01323) 410000 
nathan.haffenden@lewes
-eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 70

mailto:nathan.haffenden@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:nathan.haffenden@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 7 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Medium term financial 
strategy 
 
To consider and approve 
the council’s medium 
term financial strategy. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 10 Nov 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Consultation be 
undertaken as 
part of a wider 
consultation on 
the council’s 
budget later in 
the year. 

Report Chief Finance Officer 
(Homira Javadi)  
 
Sian Hedger, Interim 
Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer  
sian.hedger@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk,  
 
Ola Owolabi, Deputy 
Chief Finance Officer - 
Corporate Finance  
ola.owolabi@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 71

mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 8 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability Strategy 
- Annual update 2022 
 
Annual progress report 
detailing the council and 
district carbon footprints, 
and progress against the 
action plan. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Matthew Bird) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 10 Nov 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee to 
receive report if 
requested. 

Report Director of Regeneration 
and Planning  
(Ian Fitzpatrick)  
 
Kate Richardson, 
Strategy and Partnership 
Lead for Sustainability  
kate.richardson@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 72

mailto:kate.richardson@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:kate.richardson@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 9 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Homes First Repairs 
Service: Re-design and 
Development 
 
This describes an 
operational model for the 
delivery of a repairs 
service which, developed 
over time, will enable 
greater flexibility to 
deliver the Councils’ 
aspirations of Community 
Wealth Building, Social 
Value and Sustainability. 
Members are asked to 
ratify the management 
actions and decisions 
taken by officers. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor William 
Meyer) 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 10 Nov 2022 Fully exempt 
 
Exempt 
information 
reasons: 3, 4 
 

Consultation has 
taken place with 
tenants to 
determine what 
the service 
experience 
should be like. 
Their views form 
part of this 
report. 
 
Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee  
(if requested) 

Report Director of Service 
Delivery (Tim Whelan)  
 
Simon Watts, Interim 
Lead, Homes First  
simon.watts@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 73

mailto:simon.watts@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:simon.watts@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 10 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Local council tax 
reduction scheme 
 
To approve the local 
council tax reduction 
scheme and agree any 
amendments as 
necessary.  It is a legal 
requirement that the 
council approve the 
scheme annually. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Budget and 
policy 
framework 

Cabinet 
 
Full Council 

8 Dec 2022 
 
20 Feb 2023 

Open 
 
 
 

With such 
persons and 
groups as the 
council 
considered likely 
to have an 
interest in the 
operation of the 
scheme. 

Report Director of Service 
Delivery (Tim Whelan) 
 
Bill McCafferty, Lead for 
Income Maximisation and 
Welfare Tel: (01323) 
415171 
bill.mccafferty@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 74

mailto:bill.mccafferty@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:bill.mccafferty@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 11 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Council tax base and 
non-domestic rate 
income for 2023/24 
 
The Council is required 
to set its council tax base 
and the expected 
business rate income for 
the forthcoming year. 
These calculations are 
used as the basis for the 
amount of income the 
Council will precept from 
the collection fund. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 8 Dec 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee  
(if requested) 

Report Chief Finance Officer 
(Homira Javadi)  
 
Sian Hedger, Interim 
Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer  
sian.hedger@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
Ola Owolabi, Deputy 
Chief Finance Officer - 
Corporate Finance  
ola.owolabi@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 75

mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 12 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Finance update - 
performance quarter 2 - 
2022-2023 
 
To provide an update on 
the Council’s financial 
performance, revenue 
budgets and capital 
programme to the end of 
quarter 2 2022/2023 and 
explain the impact on the 
current financial position. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Zoe 
Nicholson) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 8 Dec 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Audit and 
Standards 
Committee 

Report Chief Finance Officer 
(Homira Javadi)  
 
Ola Owolabi, Deputy 
Chief Finance Officer - 
Corporate Finance  
ola.owolabi@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
Sian Hedger, Interim 
Deputy Chief Finance 
Officer  
sian.hedger@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 76

mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


Forthcoming decisions 
 
 

Page 13 
 

Title, description and 
lead cabinet member: 

Ward(s): Decision 
type: 

Decision 
maker: 
 

Expected date 
of decision: 

Expected 
exemption 
class: 
 
(Exempt 
information 
reason as 
defined by Part 
1 of Schedule 
12A of the 
Local 
Government 
Act 1972 (as 
amended)) 
 

Consultation 
arrangements 
proposed or 
undertaken 
(where known): 

Documents to 
be submitted: 

Lead Chief Officer/ 
Contact Officer: 

Portfolio progress and 
performance report 
quarter 2 - 2022-2023 
 
To update Members on 
the Council’s 
performance against 
corporate plan priority 
actions, performance 
indicators and targets 
over the quarter 2 
2022/23 period. 
 
(Lead Cabinet member: 
Councillor Chris Collier) 
 

All Wards Key  Cabinet 8 Dec 2022 Open 
 
 
 

Policy and 
Performance 
Advisory 
Committee 

Report Director of Regeneration 
and Planning  
(Ian Fitzpatrick)  
 
Luke Dreeling, 
Performance Lead  
luke.dreeling@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
 

P
age 77

mailto:luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


 

Page 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Explanatory Note 
 
The Council is required to publish information about all key decisions at least 28 days in advance of the decision being taken. 
 
This plan is a list of the decisions likely to be taken over the coming four months.  The list is not exhaustive as not all decisions are known 
that far in advance.  The Plan is updated and re-published monthly. 
 
The forward plan shows details of key decisions intended to be taken by the Cabinet and Chief Officers under their delegated powers. 
 
The plan shows:- 

• the subject of the decisions 
• what wards are affected 
• the decision type  
• who will make the decision 
• when those decisions will be made 
• expected exemption class (open, part exempt or fully exempt.) 
• what the consultation arrangements are 
• what documents relating to those decisions will be available 
• who you can contact about the decision and how to obtain copies of those documents referred to in the plan 

What is a key decision? 
 
"Key decisions" relate to a decision, which is likely:- 

P
age 78



 

Page 4 
 

 
(1) to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Council's 
area. 
 

What is budget and policy framework? 
 
When a decision is marked as “budget and policy framework”, it requires the approval of Full Council.  
 

Confidential and exempt information 
 
From time to time, the forward plan will indicate matters (or part thereof) which may need to be considered in private, during which time 
the press and public will be excluded. This is in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 5(2) of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
Any representations that such matters should not be considered in private should be sent to the contact officer. 
 
Information given to the Council by a Government Department on terms which forbid its disclosure to the public, information which cannot 
be publicly disclosed by a Court Order and information, the disclosure of which is prohibited by an enactment are all legally defined as 
“Confidential Information” and must not be disclosed.  All other local authority information which it is desired should not be disclosed has 
to be categorised under one or more of the following “Exempt Information” reasons (as given under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972) and subject to the public interest test. 
 
Category Condition No. 
1.  Information relating to any individual. 
 

See conditions 9 and 10 below. 

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 

See conditions 9 and 10 below. 

P
age 79



 

Page 5 
 

Category Condition No. 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 
 

See conditions 8, 9, 10 and 12 below. 

4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or 
negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority. 
 

See conditions 9, 10, 11 and 12 below. 

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings. 
 

See conditions 9 and 10 below. 

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes— 
 
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on 
a person; or 
 
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 
 

See conditions 9, 10 and 12 below. 

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 

See conditions 9 and 10 below. 

 
Conditions 
8. Information is not exempt information if it is required to be registered under: 
(a) the Companies Acts (as defined in section 2 of the Companies Act 2006; 
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974; 
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992; 
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978; 
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or 
(f) the Charities Act 1993. 
 
“Financial or business affairs” includes contemplated as well as past or current activities. 

P
age 80



 

Page 6 
 

 
9. Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local planning authority may grant itself planning 
permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992. 
10. Information which: 
(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and 
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above, 
is exempt information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
11. “Labour relations matter” means: 
(a) any of the matters specified in paragraphs (a) to (g) of section 218(1) of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992 
(matters which may be the subject of a trade dispute, within the meaning of that Act); or 
(b) any dispute about a matter falling within paragraph (a) above; 
and for the purposes of this definition the enactments mentioned in paragraph (a) above, with the necessary modifications, shall apply in 
relation to office-holders under the authority as they apply in relation to employees of the authority; 
 
“Office-holder”, in relation to the authority, means the holder of any paid office appointments to which are or may be made or confirmed by 
the authority or by any joint board on which the authority is represented or by any person who holds any such office or is an employee of the 
authority. 
 
“Employee” means a person employed under a contract of service. 
 
12. "The authority" is a reference to the council or a committee or sub-committee of the council or a joint committee of more than one 
council. 
 
 

Further information 
 
The plan is available to view on our Council website: http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/councillors-committees-and-meetings/cabinet-
and-committees/ 
 

P
age 81

Council%20website:%20http:/www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/councillors-committees-and-meetings/cabinet-and-committees/
Council%20website:%20http:/www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/councillors-committees-and-meetings/cabinet-and-committees/


 

Page 7 
 

If you have any questions about the Forward Plan please contact Simon Russell, Head of Democratic Services, on (01323) 415021, or e-
mail simon.russell@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk. 

P
age 82

mailto:simon.russell@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


 
Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme 

2022/2023 
 
Subject Lead Officer Date of meeting 
Housing development update Leighton Rowe, Development Project Manager 

Leighton.rowe@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 
31 May 2022 

Waste and recycling services - fleet Sean Towey, Head of Environment First 
sean.towey@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk & Jane 
Goodall, Strategy and Partnership Lead, Quality 
Environment Tel: 01273 484383 Jane.Goodall@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  

31 May 2022 

 
Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 4 
- 2021-2022 

Luke Dreeling, Performance Lead  
luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

29 June 2022 

Provisional Revenue and Capital Outturn 2021/22 Homira Javadi, Chief Finance Officer, 
Homira.javadi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk & Ola 
Owolabi, Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate 
Finance) ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk  

29 June 2022 

Treasury Management Annual Report 2021/22 Homira Javadi, Chief Finance Officer, 
Homira.javadi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk & Ola 
Owolabi, Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate 
Finance) ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

29 June 2022 

Recommendations for Community Infrastructure 
Levy Spending 

Emma Kemp, Senior Planning Policy Officer 
emma.kemp@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

29 June 2022 

Methodology for collecting monitoring fees in 
connection with the compliance with S106 Legal 
Agreements 

Leigh Palmer, Head of Planning First 
leigh.palmer@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

29 June 2022 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 9

mailto:Jane.Goodall@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:Jane.Goodall@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:Homira.javadi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:Homira.javadi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


 
Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme 

2022/2023 
 
Reimagining Newhaven - Project Update Nathan Haffenden, Head of Commercial Business 

Development nathan.thompson@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk  

29 June 2022 

Cost of Living Crisis Jo Harper Head of Business Planning and 
Performance  

29 June 2022 

Revised Planning Pre-Application Charging 
Schedule 

Leigh Palmer, Head of Planning eigh.palmer@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk 

29 June 2022 

 
Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 1 
- 2022-2023 

Luke Dreeling, Performance Lead  
luke.dreeling@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

14 September 2022 

Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022-
2023 

Homira Javadi, Chief Finance Officer, 
Homira.javadi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk & Ola 
Owolabi, Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate 
Finance) ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk,  
Sian Hedger, Interim Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
sian.hedger@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk  

14 September 2022 

Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency 
Fund 

Bill McCafferty, Lead for Income Maximisation and 
Welfare bill.mccafferty@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

14 September 2022 

Housing development update (part exempt) Nathan Haffenden, Head of Commercial Business 
Development nathan.thompson@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk 

14 September 2022 

 
Update from Southern Water re request from Full 
Council 

Tim Whelan, Director of Service Delivery 
tim.whelan@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk 

3 November 2022 

P
age 84

mailto:nathan.thompson@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:nathan.thompson@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:ola.owolabi@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:nathan.thompson@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:nathan.thompson@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk


 
Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme 

2022/2023 
 
Corporate Assets Update Nathan Haffenden, Head of Commercial Business 

Development nathan.thompson@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk 

3 November 2022 

 
 
Standing Items at all meetings of the Committee 
 
• Forward Plan of Decisions 
 
• Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme 
 
 

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Information for the public
	Accessibility:
	Filming/Recording:
	Public participation:

	Information for councillors
	Disclosure of interests:
	Councillor right of address:
	Other participation:

	Democratic Services

	1 Minutes of the previous meeting dated 29 June 2022
	6a Portfolio progress and performance report quarter 1 - 2022-2023
	080 Portfolio progress and performance report - quarter 1 - 2022-23 (003)
	091 LDC Portfolio progress and performance report 2022 23- quarter 1 - Appendix 1
	Appendix 1

	Appendix 2 LDC 2022 Corporate Plan Progress Update

	6b Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022-2023
	090 Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022.23 FINAL.docx  0209
	091 Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022.23 - Appendix 1 Housing Revenue Account 2022.23
	092 Finance update - performance quarter 1 - 2022.23 - Appendix 2 - Q1 LDC Capital Prog

	6c Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund
	100 Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund
	101 Lewes District Council Cost of Living Emergency Fund - Appendix 1

	6d Housing development update
	120 Housing development update

	7a Housing Development update - Exempt appendix 1
	8 Forward Plan of Decisions
	Explanatory Note
	What is a key decision?
	What is budget and policy framework?
	Confidential and exempt information
	Further information

	9 Policy and Performance Advisory Committee Work Programme



